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Regd. (ICAN) No.: 407 P.0, Box No: 10895, 196/30 - Radhe Marg

?! Dillibazar, Kathmandu, Nepal
Assnciates Tel. 01-4445217, 4440317, 4417395

Fax: +977-1-4445218
Chartered Accountants Wakshax www,jiss.com.np

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO THE SHARFHOLDERS OF CITIZENS BANK INTERNATIONAL Lid.

We have audited the accompamying consolidated financial statements of Citizens Bank International Lid and its subsidiary, which comprise the
Consolidated Siatement of Financial Position as at Ashad 33, 2075 (July 16, 2018), and the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then ended, and a summmary of significant Accounting Policies and other
Managemeni's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management i5 responsible for the preparanon and fair presentation of these consolidared financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRSs). and for such isternal control as mamagement detenmiees is necessary (o enable the preparation of consolidated
financizl statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or emor,

Aunditor’s Responsibility

Onir responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our andit s accordance
with Mepal Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the andit to obiain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement,

An andit involves performing procedures to obtam andit evidence abour the amounts and disclosures m the consolidated financial sratements.
The procednes selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessinent of the naks of material wisstatenent of the cousolidated
financial starements, whether due to fraed or emor, Tn making those risk assessments, the anditor considers the mtemal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial siatements in order to design audit procedures that ave appropriate i the
circumstances, but mot for the prrpose of expressing an opinicn on the effectiveness of entity’s imternal control. An andit also ingludes evalrating
ihe approprigieness of the accounting policies nsed and ihe reasonableness of accoumiing estimates made by ihe management. as well as evaluating
the owverall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We helieve that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our andit opinion.

Opinion

In our opamion. the consolidated financial starements present fairly, o all material aspects, the financial position of Citizens Bank International Lid.
and its subsidiary as at Ashad 32, 2075 (Tulv 16, 2018) and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Mepal Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 2063,

Report on Oihier Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Cm the basis of our examination, we would ke 1o firther repoat that.

We have obtained all the mformarion and explanations. which were considered necessary for the purpose for our audit,
Fimancial statements are in agreement with the books of account mamtamed by the Bank,

il Sofaras it appears from onr examination, books of acoomnts aré properly maintaimned in accordaice with the prevailing laws,
Sp far as o appears fom our examninanon, we have ot come across cases where the Board of Directors or any member thereof or any
representative or any office holder or any emploves of the Bank has acted comtrary to the provisions of Iaw or cansed loss or damage to the Bank.
The operanons of the Bank were within s pmsdiction,
The Bank has not acted in a4 manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the depositors and investors,
The bank has a centralized core accomting system and details received from branches of the Bank though the statements are independently
not andited. were adequate for the purpose of our andit. and

vill We have ol comye across any frandulence in e accounts. so far as it appeared from our examinarion of the book of accoumms,

.4-',
o
| CA. Miranjan Chandhany
Partner
JK & 55 Associates
Chartered Accountants.
Date; December 11, 2018
Place Narayanhiti Path, Kathinandn
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Citizens Bank International Ltd.

Bank

e
Citizens /.. .:

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As on 32* Ashadh, 2075 (July 16, 2018)
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Amount in NFR

Particulars

Note

Group

Bank

Current Year | Previous Year

Current Year | Previous Year

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

5,148,467,404

4,552,522,507

5.046,237,676 | 3,887,4G68,818

Due from Mepal Rastra Bank

3,680,192,293

2,190,8%6,703

3,600,192,293 |  2,190,896,703

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

1989,878,258

1,568,014,418

1,989,878,358 | 1,568,014,418

Derivative Financial Instruments

36,385,944

21,975,955

36,385,044 21,975,955

Other Trading Assets

142,662,000

133,500,339

76,236,446 51,442,831

Loans and Advances to B/Fis

1,420,646,157

1,467,126,576

1,420,646,197 1,467,126,974

Loans and Advances to Customers

55,558,957, 114

46,015,334,255

55,601,766,580 | 46,021,501,436

Investment Securities

5,616,858,302

65,800,605,921

5,616,858,302 | 6,785,605,921

Current Tax Assets

114,653,791

300,791,522

114,653,791 300,791,522

Investment in Susidiaries

117,200,000 67,000,000

Investment in Associates

23,903,192

31,751,500

17,851,500 31,751,500

Investment Property

287,547,060

390,066,062

287,547,060 380,066,062

Property and Equlprment

2,127,954,165

1,765,808,835

2,121,592.854 1,758,546,430

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

71,173,137

8,733,685

70,534,031

Deferred Tax Assets

8,066,489

Other Assets

1,486,416,314

1,343,435,463

1,502,271 952 1,331,359,117

Total Assets

77,755,705,271

56,590,964,142

77,708,952,994 | 65,881,614,179

| Liabilivies

Due to Banks and Financial Insttutions

3,335,288,532

2.501,906,804

3,335,288,532 2,501,906,804

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

635,041,370

33,578,077

695,041,370 33,578,077

Dearivative Financial Instruments

Deposits from Customers

60,605,515,636

51,700,969,191

60,696,026,372

Borrowing

=

5,000,000

51,716,674,652

Current Tax Liabilites

Provisians

5,526,126

3,078,973

5,306,626

Deferred Tax Liabilities

15,292,307

85,477,182

17,677,499 85,192,158

Other Liabilities

1,554,811,510

1.880,542,008

1,447,977,647 1,202,929,525

[Debt Securities issued

498,722,911

498,148,814

488,722,911 498,148,814

Subordinated Liabilities

Total Liabilities

56,710,498,391

56,709,101,049

66,6%6,041,556 | 56,028,430,030

Equity

share Capital

8,033,236,400

6,921,689 662

8,033,236400 |  6,921,089,662

Share Premium

433,526

534,794,833

433,526 532,794,833

Retained Earnings

117,421,902

765,036,986

132,228,780 763,369,943

Reserves

2,849,829 461

1,627.467,560

2,848,012,733 1,625,329,711

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders

11,000,921,288

9,846,589,041

11,013,911,439 9,843,184,149

MNon-Controlling Interest

44,285,592

34,874,053

Tatal Equity

11,045,206,880

9,881,863,094

11,013,911,439 |  9,843,184,149

Total Liabilities and Equity

77,755,705,271

66,590,964,142

77,709,952,994 | 65,881,614,179

Contingent liabilities and commitment
Met assets valee per share

(Framesh Raj Knyastha}
Clief Finance Officer

(Bipaya Do Karki)
Director

{Rajan 5mgh Bhandari)
Chief Executve Officer

{Pabitra Kumnar EKarka)
Dhirector

Date: Mangsir 25, 2075
Place: Marnyanhiti Path, Kathmaadn

4,28

15654

(D Shankar Prasad Sharma)

Chamrman

{Dr: Chianda Karki}

Diirector

2,

142.26

(Bal Krishna Prasai)
Dhrector

(Avanindm Kumar Shrestha)

Dhrestor

137,10 14221

{Prokash Chandrn Mamah)
Dimecior

A per our report of even date
CA Nirangan Chandbary
Pariner
JK & 55 Associates
Charfersd Acconnians
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Citizens Bank International Ltd.

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 32° Ashadh, 2075 (July 16, 2018)

Amount in NPR
Bank

Group

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Interest Income

7,110,181,614

4,957,9532,921

7,109,387,573

#,960,197,979

Interest Expenses

(4,881,474,938)

(3,167,144,719)

14,887,319,894)

(3,169,957,746)

MNet Interest Income

2,228,706,676

1,7590,80%,202

2,222,067,679

1,790,240,233

Fees and Commission [ncome

578,046,372

461,834,527

350,884,278

429,211,115

Fees and Commission Expenses

(52,321,855)

[36,826,245)

(50,836,108)

(33,296,835)

Met Fees and Commission Income

525,724,517

425,008,282

509,048,171

395,814,259

Met Interest, Fees and Commission Income

2,754,431,193

2,215,817 485

2,731,115,850

2,186,054,492

Net Trading Income

172,484 862

134,661,964

181,074,487

136,794 468

Other Operating Income

124 457,490

86,722 816

120,696,494

93,889,840

Tatal Operating Income

3,051,373,552

2,437,202,265

3,032,886,830

2,416,738,801

Impairment {Charge)/ Reversal for Loans and Other Losses

(89,316,642)

96,965,217

(89,316,642)

96,965,217

MNet Operating Income

2,962,056,910

2,534,167,482

2,943,570,188

2,513,704,017

Operating Expenses

Personnel Expenses

(789,970,588)

(585,920,436)

(724,057,381}

|579,564,141)

Other Operating Expenses

{375,165,455)

{313,515,335)

(247,358 417}

{308,364,527)

Depreciation & Amortizsation

{128,350,655)

(93,643,010)

(126,526,734)

(92,692,281)

Operating Profit

1,668,570,213

1,541,088,701

1,685,627,057

1,532,082,967

Man Operating Income

27,402,047

725,317,947

37,955,047

735,476,334

Mon Operating Expenses

(16,717,011)

(105,936,458

(15,717,011)

{105,936,458)

Profit Before Income Tax

1,679,255,249

2,160,470,190

1,706,865,083

2,161,623,344

Incorme Tax Expanses

Current Tax

{536,347 961)

{266,285,162)

{536,347,961)

(265,337,676}

Deferred Tax

65,686,933

(261,652,915)

63,586,765

{261,367,894)

Profit for the Period

1,208,594,221

1,632,532,112

1,234,103,897

1,634,917,774

Profit Attributable To:

Equity Holders af the Bank

1,217.377,305

1,631,218,931

1,234,103,897

1,634,917.774

Mon-Contralling Interest

(8,783,084)

1,313,182

Profit for the Period

1,208,594,221

1,632,532,112

1,234,103,897

1,634,917,774

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share

15.05

2033

1537

20.36

Diluted Earnings Per Share

15.05

20,33

15.37

20.36

(Praiesh Raj Kayasta}
Chief Finamsce Officer

{Buafan Singl Bhandariy
Chief Executive Officer

(Th: Shankar Prasad Shamsa)
Claairman

(Bal Krishna Prasai)
DHrector

{Prakasl Chandea Mainali)
Darector

(Bugayn Dhog Karki)
Director

{Pabitra Kumnar Earki)
Dhirechor

(Dr. Chanda Karki)

Director

[ Axvanindra Kumar Shrestha)
Director

A per our report of even dade
C A Niramgan Chandhary
Pariner
T & 55 Associates
Chartered Acconntanis

Dhabe: Mangsar 25, 2075
Place: Marayanhsh Path, Kathmandn
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Citizens Bank International Ltd.

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 32° Ashadh, 2075 (July 16, 2018)

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Profit for the Period

1,208,594,221

1,632,532,112

1,234,103,897

1,634,917,774

Other Comprehensive Income for the Period, Net of
Income Tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Gains/ (Losses) from Investments in Equity Instruments
teasured at Fair Value

(9,000,000)

(9,000,000}

Gains/ |Losses) on Revaluation

Actuarial gains/ (Losses) on Defined Benefit Plans

{3,901,414)

3,985,502

{4,092,580)

3,985,502

Income Tax relating to above items

3,975,786

11,195,651)

3,927,894

(1,195,651)

Effective portion of changes in Fair Value

Net Other Comprehensive Income that will not be
reclassified te Profit or Loss

{8,925,629)

2,789,851

{9,165,086)

2,789,851

b} lems that are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Gains/ (Losses) on Cash Flow Hedge

Exchange Gains/ [Losses) [arising from translating
Financial Assets of Foreign Operation]

Incame Tax relating 1o above items

Reclassify to Profit or Loss

Net Other Comprehensive Income that are or may be
reclassified to Profit or Loss

¢} Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Associate
accounted as per Equity Method

Other Comprehensive Income for the Period, Net of
Income Tax

(8,925,629)

2,789,851

(9,165,086)

2,789,851

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period

1,199,668,593

1,635,321, 964

1,224 938,811

1,637,707,625

Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to:

Equity Holders of the Bank

1,208,311,270

1,095,665,716

1,224,938,811

1.637,707,625

Mon-Contralling Interest

18,738,460)

539,656, 248

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period

1,199,572,810

1,635,321,964

1,224,938,811

1,637,707,625

(Praiesh Raj Kayastla)

{Buafan Singl Bhandariy (D Shankar Prasad Sharma)
Chief Finamsce Officer

Chief Executive Officer Claairman

(Bal Krishna Prasai)
DHrector

{Prakasl Chandea Mainali)
Darector

(Bugayn Dhog Karki)
Director

{Pabitra Kumnar Earki)
Dhirechor

(Dr. Chanda Karki)

Director

[ Axvanindra Kumar Shrestha)
Director

A per our report of even dade
C A Niramgan Chandhary
Pariner
T & 55 Associates
Chartered Acconntanis

Dhabe: Mangsar 25, 2075
Place: Marayanhsh Path, Kathmandn
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Citizens Bank International Ltd.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 32° Ashadh, 2075 (July 16, 2018)

Amount in NFR

e Group Bank
Current Year J Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received B,649,776,365 4,825,772,620 | 6648082323 | 4828016678
Fees and Other Income Recelved 581,835,300 154,497,986 575,124,736 119,945,456
Dividend Received 174,460 176,399 174,460 176,399
Receipts from Other Dperating Activities 232,306,906 935,827,779 246,042 406 953,351,667
Interest Paid (4,761,355,670) | (3.057.813,296) | [4,767,244,626) | (3,060,626,323)
Commission and Fees Paid (50,111,108} (32,671,855) (50,836, 108) {33,3965,855)
Cash Payment to Employees (676,171,999} 1649,024,670) (670,488,221) (642,668,376)
Other Expenses Paid (511,497,036} (309,588,255) | [486,690,820) | (310,060,318)
Dperating Cash Flows before Changes in Operating Assets and 1,474,913,218 1,868,176,708 | 1,495,064,151 | 1,854,739,328
Liabilities
(increase)/ Decrease in Operating Assets
Due from Mepal Rastra Bank (1,499,295 590) 551,266,238 | (1,499,295,550| 551,266,238
Placement with Bank and Financial Insttutions {421,863,940) (587,221,248} (421,863,540) {587 ,221,248)
Other Trading Assets {43,373,359) (43,883,470) {43,373,3549) {43,883,470)
Loans and Advances to Bank and Financial Institutions 46,480,779 (13,062,565) 46,480,773 (13,062,565)
Loans and Advances to Customers (9,583,064,611) | (7,435,854,070) | (9,580,265,145) | (7,429,696,850)
Other Assets (78,427 665) | (1082,181,739) 19,577,295 | (1,028,439,419)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Operating Liabilites
[rue to Banks and Financial Institutions #33.381,728 1,385,610,794 833,381,728 | 1,385,610,794
Due ta Mepal Rastra Bank 661,463,263 30,828,077 G61,463,293 30,828,077
Deposit from Customers £,8890,140,983 3,621,195376 | 8,0979,352,320 3.636,900,837
Borrawings (5,568,272) 6,167,180 = =
Other Liabilities {494,675,411) 546,705,764 27,462 990 {181,882, 2100
Met Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Taxes Paid (216.,888,847) | (1,152,262,955) 517,984,522 | (1,824,840,527)
Income Taxes Paid {354,138 124) (571,062,306) | [354,138.124) | (566,129,198)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (571,026,970) | (1,723,325,261) 163,846,398 | (2,390,969,725)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investment Securities (68,600,000 {238,988,837) [36,400,000) {171,988,837)
Receipts from 3ale of Investment Securities 1,194,560,149 (10,001,275} 1,191,495,006 (20,215.697)
Purchase of Property and Eguipment {490,924, 795) (297,977,408) (490,030,077} (290,897, 285)
Receipt from the Sale of Praperty and Equipment 5,227,247 292,099 484 5,227.247 292,099 484
Purchase of Intangible Assets {65,674 655) (74,501,360} (65,674,655) (74,501, 3600
Receipt from the Sale of Intangible Assets + - -
Purchase of Investment Properties - = -
Recaipt from the Sale of Investment Properties 102,519,002 - 102,519,002
Interest Received 300,908,953 122 452,635 300,908,953 122,452,635
Dividend Received 9,464,231 11,431,778 5,690,709 8,556,068
et Cash used in Investing Activities 987,880,132 (195,484,982) | 1,013,736,186 (134,494,992}
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Particulars

Bank

Current Year | Previous Year

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from lssue of Debt Securities

Repayment of Debt Securities

Receipt from Issue of Subordinated Liabilities

i

Repayment of Subordinated Liabilities

Receipt from Issue of Shares

191,276,394

2,551,810,699

4,076,394

2,484,810,699

[ividends Paid

(50,467,973}

(26,881,598}

(45,467,973)

(17,028,157)

Interest Paid

(44,302,083

(42,4599,958)

[44,302,083)

(42,499,998)

Other Receipty Payment

329,389,691

329,389,601

Net Cash from Financing Activities

96,506,338

3,011,818,794

{85,693,662)

2,854,662, 235

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

513,359,499

1,0593,008,550

1,091,888,921

429,197,518

Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1* Shrawan, 2074

4,568.227,968

3,399,712,661

3,887 468,518

3,308,480,006

Effect of Exchange Rate Fluctuations on Cash and Cash
Equivalents Held

‘B6,870,837

59,791,295

66,879,937

59,791,295

Cash and Cash Equivalents At Ashadh End 2075

5,148,467,404

4,552,522,507

5,046,237,676

3,887,468,818

{Pramesh Raj astha)
E‘I:i.:fFlnﬁE?]yfﬁm
(Bigayn Dhoj Karki)

Direchor

{Rapon Siogh Bhandan}
Chief Executive Officer
{ Pabitra Kumar Farkij
Dhirechor

Dhabe: Mangsar 25, 2075
Place: Marayanhsh Path, Kathmandn

(Dr. Chanda Karki)

Director

(Dr. Shankar Prasad Sharma}
Chairman

R4

(Bal Knsima'l Prasni)

Darecior

[ Axvanindra Kumar Shrestha)

Director

{Prakash Chandra Mamali)

Dhvector

As per our report of even daie

C A Niramgan Chandhary

Pariner

TK & 55 Associates
Chartered Acconntanis
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Citizens Bank International Ltd.
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements

As on 32™ Ashadh, 2075 (July 16, 2018)

1. Reporting Entity

Citizens Bank International Ltd. (*the Bank' or *CBIL’) 15 a public company mcorporated under the Compames Act,
2063 and licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank to conduct Banking transaction as a “A" Class Commercial Bank under
the Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073, The Bank has its Corporate Office at Narayanhiti Path, Kathmanch.
The Bank received the license to commence Banking operations on 7" Baisakh, 2064 (Apnl 20, 2007). The Bank's
Equity Shares are listed in Nepal Stock Exchange, The principal activities of the Bank 15 to provide all commercial
banking services including agency services. trade finance services, e-commerce services and trading of gold and
silver, etc, to its customers through head office, branches, branchless banking units and ATMs.

The Bank acquired two “C class financial mstitutions, Nepal Housing & Merchant Finance Ltd. and People's
Finance Lid. during the Fiscal Year 2071/72. The Bank started consolidated Banking transaction from 25" Baisakh,

2072 (May 8, 2015). Smularly, the Bank has acquired Premmer Finance Ltd. and started the consolidated transaction
from 2 Shrawan, 2073 (July 17, 2016).

Subsidiary

CBIL Capital Ltd. (*the Subsidiary”) is the subsidiary company of the Bank. It was incorporated on 17* Magh,
2062 (January 30, 2006) as public company under the Companies Act, 2063, The Bank made an equity investment
in CBIL Capital Ltd on 30* Falgun, 2072 (March 13, 2016). The principal activities of the Subsidiary are to
provide merchant/ investment banking services that include management of public offerings. portfolio management,
underwriting of securities and fund management of mutual fund schemes, depository participant’s service under
Central Depository Service (CDS) and administration and record keeping of securities of its clients. The Bank as on
date holds 68.94% controlling mterest in the Subsidiary.

Associates:

Nepal Electromic Payment Systems Ltd. (NEPS) and Nepal Cleaning House Ltd. (NCHL) are the associates of the
Bank.

MNEPS 15 formulated as a consortium of seven national level commercial Banks. with aim to pool the resources of
these Banks together and establish a common platform, which will be more secure, reliable and able to encompass
the rapid growth of new technologies in electronic payments.

NCHL 15 a public Ltd. company established on 9 Mangsir 2065 (December 23, 2008) under the leadership and
guidance of Nepal Rastra Bank (The Central Bank of Nepal). It has the equity parucipation from Nepal Rastra Bank,
commercial Banks, development Banks, finance companies and Smart Choice Technologies (SCT), a pnvate card
switch operator.

MNCHL has the sirategic objectives to establish multiple payments. clearing and settlement sysiems in Nepal with long

term objective to establish a national payments gateway to facilitate electronic payments and financial transactions
within the country. Eleetronic Chegue Cleanng (NCHL-ECC) and Inter Bank Payment System (NCHL-IPS) are the
national payment systems that are currently in operation.

The Bank, the Subsidiary and the associates are collectively referred to as “the Group™.

Principal Activities:

The principal activities of the Bank during the year is commercial banking, personal banking. development financing,
morigage financing, lease financing, corporate financing, credit card facilines, foreign cumency operations,
e-Banking and other financial services. The principal activity of the subsidiary company 1s to provide merchant
banking services.
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2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting except the Cash Flow
information. which is prepared on a cash basis, using the direct method.

The financial statements compnse the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income. the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to
the Accounts of the group and separate financial statements as stated above of the Bank. The sigmificant accounting
policies applied in the preparation of financial statements are set out below 1n point number 3. These policies are
consistently applied to all the years presented, except for the changes in accounting policies disclosed specifically.

2.1. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Group which compnses components mentioned above have been prepared m
accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards comprising of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and Nepal
Accounting Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
and i compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063 and Generally Accepied Accounting Principles
in the banking industry in Nepal.

The Board of Directors of the Group authorized the financial statement vide its resolution dated 25" Mangsir, 2075
and recommended for 1ts approval by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.

2.2. Reporting Period

Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan (nud July) of any year to the last day of Ashadh (nmd
July) of the next year as per Nepali calendar.

Mepali Calendar English Calendar
Current Year 2074/75 2017/18
Previous Year 2073/74 2016/17
Current Year Period 1* Shrawan 2074 to July 16, 2017 to
327 Ashadh 2075 duly 16, 2018
Previous Year Pericd 1% Shrawan 2073 to July 16, 2016 to
31* Ashadh 2074 July 15, 2017

2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements of the Group are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which s the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates. Financial information is presented in Nepalese Rupees, There
was no change in the Group’s presentation and functional currency during the vear under review. The figures are
rounded to nearest integer, except otherwise indicated.

2.4. Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgement

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that are
considered while reporting amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent assets and liabilities) as of the
date of the financial statements, Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively m
current and future periods.

Information about assumptions and estimation that have a sigmificant nisk of resulting in a matenal adjustment
within the next financial year are:

s Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projections.
Measurement of defined benefit obligations.

L]
s Provisions, conumitments and conlingencies.
L]

Determunation of net reahzable value.
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Determination of useful life of the property. plant and equipment.
Assessment of the Group's ability to continue as going concern.
Determination of fair value of financial instruments; and property and equipment.
Impairment of financial and non-financial assets.
o  Assessment of current as well as deferred tax.
2.5. Changes in Accounting Policies

The Group has apphied its accounting policies consistently from year to year except for some comparatives have
been grouped or regrouped to facilitate comparison, corrections of errors and any changes in accounting policy have
been separately disclosed with detail explanation.

2.6. New Reporting standards issued buti not effective

For the reporting of financial mstruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures have been applied.

NFRS 9 has been complied for the classification of Financial [nstruments.

Few carve-outs on apphcable Accounting Standards as provided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
have been used by the Bank, the quanutative and qualitative impact of the same have been disclosed in detail in
Notes to the Accounts.

Further, a number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been 1ssued
by Internatonal Accounting Standard Board after the pronouncements of WFRS with varving effective dates. Those
become apphicable when Accounting Standard Board Nepal incorporates them withm NFRS.

2.7. Discounling

The Group calculates amortized cost of a financial assets or a financial hability using the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the
expected life of a financial asset or a financial hability to the net carrving amount of the financial asset or liability.
If expected life cannot be determined reliably. then the contractual life is used.

In case where the Group assesses that the transaction amount of a financial assets or a financial liabihty does not
represent 1ts fair value, the relaied future cash flows are discounted at prevailing interest rate to determine the iniial
fair value,

2.B. Prior Period Errors

Prior Period Errors are onussions of misstatements in an entity’s financial statements, Such omussions may relate to
one or motre prior periods. Correction of an error 15 done by calculating the cumulatuve effect of the change on the
financial statements of the period as if new method or estimate had always been used for all the affected prior vears’
financial statements. Sometimes such changes mav not be practicable. In such cases, 1t 1s applied 1o the latest period
possible by making corresponding adjustment to the opening balance of the penod.

2.9. Previous Year's Figures
Previous year's figures have been grouped or regrouped wherever necessary to facilitate companson.
2.10. Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with NFES | Presentation of Financial Statements. each material class of similar items is presented
separately in the financial statements. Ttlems of dissimilar nature or functions are presented separately, unless they
are material.

2.11. New Standards and interpretation not adopied

Diring the current fiscal year, the Group has not applied the numbers of standards as prescribed in NFRES and used
the NFRS carve- out adjustments. As a consequence, the net profit and retamed earnings have been impacted.
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The impacts of each carve- out adjustment done and the affected financial statement line items have been summarized
in Point no 5.24 below.
Significant Accounting Policies

The prncipal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial Statemenits are set out below. The
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The preparation of
financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates. The areas where sigmficant judgements and
estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements and their effects have been disclosed.

3.1. Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis. except for following material items in the
Statement of Financial Position:

o Financial assets other than measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.
Non-derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.
lnventories are measured at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit obligation
less the fair value of the plan assets.

Invesiment property 1s measured af cost
Liabilities for cash-settled. share-based-payment arrangements are measured at fair value.
Investment securities are measured at fair value.
Trading Assets like Bonds, Treasury Bills, Equities. efe. held for trading purpose are measured at fair value.
Impairment of asset 1s measured at fair value and related disposal cost.
e  Assels acquired & liabilities assumed in a business combination are recogmzed at far value.
3.2. Basis of Consolidation

Where the company has the power, either directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating pohicies of
another entity or business so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 1 1s classified as a Subsidiary. The Consclidated
Financial Statements present the results of the company and its subsidianes ('the Group’) as if theyv are a single
entity.

In the Statement of Financial Position. the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are
imtially recognized at their fair values at the acquisition date. The results of acquired operations are included i the
Consolidated Statement of Income from the date on which control is obtained. They are de-consolidated from the
date control ceases.

The Group's Financial Statements comprise consolidation of the financial statements of the Group and 1ts subsidiary
in terms of NFRS 10 Consohdated Financial Statements.

3.2.1. Subsidiary

Subsidianies are the entities controlled by the Bank. The Bank controls an entity if 1t 1s exposed, or has nghts, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through 1ts power
over the mvestee. The Financial Statements of subsidianes are included n the Consolidated Financial Statements
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The Bank reassesses whether 1t has control
if there are changes to one or more of the elements of control. The financial statements have been prepared using
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in sumilar circumsiances.

The Consolidated Finaneial Statements are prepared for the common financial vear end. There are no significant
restrictions on the ability of subsidiaries to transfer funds to the parent in the form of cash dividends or to repay
loans and advances.
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3.2.2. Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. As of the acquisition date, the amount of
non-controlling interest 1s measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquirer’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related costs are expensed in the periods in which the costs are
incurred and the services are received.

The Group elects on a transaction by transaction basis, whether to measure non-controlling interest at its fair value, or
at its proportionate share of the recognized amount of the identifiable net assets. at the acquisition date, Transaction
costs, other than those associated with the 1ssue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs m connection with
a business combination are expensed as incurred.

3.2.3. Acquisitions of non-controlling interests

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with equity holders in their capacity as
equity holders. Therefore. no goodwill 1s recogmized as a result of such transactions.

3.2.4. Loss of control

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying amount of non-
conirolling interests and the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity related to the subsidiary. Further,
parent’s share of components previously recogmzed in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 1s reclassified to profit
or loss or refained earnings as appropnate. Any surplus or deficit ansing on the loss of control 15 recognized in the
profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest 1s measured at fair value
at the date that control 15 lost. Subsequently, 1t 15 accounted for as an equitv-accounted investee or in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy for financial mstruments depending on the level of influence retained.

3.2.5. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

All intra group balances, income and expenses (except for foreign currency translation gains or losses) ansmg from
intra group transactions are eliminated on consolidation, Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and subsidiary are also eliminated on consolidation to the extent of the Group’s mnterests in the
subsidiary.

3.3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents melude cash at vault and agency Bank account balances, unrestricted balances with NRB,
highly Liquid financial assets with onginal maturity of 3 months from the date of iis acquusition and are readily
convertible to cash, which are subject to an msigmificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortized cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the *Direct Method® in accordance with NAS 03 Cash Flow
Statements.

3.4. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
3.4.1. Recognition

The Group mitially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability m its Statement of Financial Position when,
and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the nstrument. The Group initially recognizes
loans and advances, deposits; and debt securities’ subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are originated,
which is the date that the Group becomes party to the contraciual provisions of the instruments. [nvestments in
equity mstruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright
purchase are recognized on trade date at which the Group commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular
way purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade date.

3.4.2. Classification
i. Financial Assets
The Group classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of
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the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows:

I Financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Group classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:
a) The asset 15 held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and
b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Hows that are solely pavments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at far value. Financial assets
measured at fair value are further classified mto two catezones as below:
a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or lass

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or
are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon mitial recogmition, transaction cost and are directly
aftributable to the acquisition are recognized 1n profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently
measured at fair value and changes n fair value are recogmzed in Statement of Profit or Loss.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment i an equity mstrument that 1s not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the Group
makes an wrrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the mstrument 15 to be recognized
in other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive
icome. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

it. Financial Liabilities

The Group classifies the financial habilities as follows:

al Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost are directly attributable
to the acquisition are recognized 1n Statement of Profit or Loss as icwrred. Subsequent changes i fair value 1s
recognized at profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value through profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost using effective mterest method.

3.4.3. Measurement

Initial Measurement

A financial asset or finanetal liability is measured initally at far value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly atinbutable to its acquisition or 1ssue.

Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subseguieni Measuremeni

A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at amortized cost based on the

classification of the financial asset or hability. Fiancial asset or liability classified as measured at amortized cost 1s
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial
liability 1s measured at 1nitial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization

ant arfiw gfed=sa sowy ey Ic



= . | Bank
Citizens ... o
YOURPARTMER FORPROGRESS
using the effective interest method of any difference between that imtial amount and the matunty amount, and minus
any reduction for impaimment or uncollectibility.
Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value, The subsequent changes in fair

value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized m Statement of Profit or Loss, whereas of
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income,

3.4.4. Derecognition
I. Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contraciual righis to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when 1t transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the nisks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substaniially all
the nisks and rewards of ownership and 1t does not retam control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the
Group is recognized as a separate asset or hability. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset, and the swm of (1) the consideration received and (1) any curnulative gain or loss that
had been recogmzed 1s recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

The Group enters into iransactions whereby 1t transfers assets recognized on its Statement of Financial Position, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. Then the
transferred assets are not derecognized. Transfer of assets with retention of all or substantially all nsks and rewards
include, for example repurchase transactions,

it. Derecognifion of financial labilities

A financial hability 1s derecognmized when the obligation under the liability 15 discharged or cancelled or expired.
Where an existing financial hability 1s replaced by another, from the same lender on substantally different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification 15 treated as a

derecognition of the onginal hability and the recognition of a new hability. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid 1s recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.
3.4.5. Determination of fair value

‘Fair value' 15 the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabality {exut price) in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a hability reflects 1ts non
performance nsk.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an mstrument using the quoted price in an active market for
that mstrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or hability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing imformation on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an active
market. then the Group uses valuation technigues that maximize the use of relevant observable nputs and minumize

the use of unobservable mputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a ransaction.

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical

or simtlar mstruments m inactive markets and financial mstruments valued using models where all sigmficant puts
are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable mputs of the mstruments. The inputs are not based on
observable market data.

The best evidence of the far value of a financial instrument at mitial recogmition 15 normally the transaction price Le.
the fair value of the consideration gaven or recerved, If the Group determines that the fair value at imtial recognition
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differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or hability (Level 01 valuation), nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets (Level 02 valuation). then the financial instrument 1s initially measured at fair value, adjusted
to defer the difference between the fair value at mitial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that
difference 1s recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but not later than
when the valuation i1s wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction 1s closed out. In case the fair
value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (Level 01 valuation), the
difference hetween the transaction price and fair value 1s recognized in profit or loss immediately.

3.4.6. Offsetting

Financial assets and habilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial Position when,
and only when, the Group has a legal night to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under NFRS, or for gams and losses ansing
from a group of sumilar iransactions such as i the Group's trading activity.

3.4.7. Impairmeni of financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets 1s umpaired when objective evidence demonsirates that a loss event has oceurred after the imiial recognition
of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated
reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower
or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructurimg of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the
Group would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter Bankruptey. the disappearance
of an active market for a secunity, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes
the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaulis in the
group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its far value below
its cost 15 objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Group considers to restructure loans rather than take possession
of collateral. This may wmvolve exiending the payment arrancements and agreement of new loan conditions. Once
the terms have been renegotiated, any mmpamrment 15 measured using the ongmal EIR as calculated before the
modification of terms and the loan is no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegofiated
loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payvments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject
to an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan's onginal EIR.

Impairment of financial assets measured af amortfized cost

The Group considers evidence of imparment for loans and advances and investmeni securities measured at amoriized
cost at both specific asset and collective level. The Group first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are mdividually significant and that are not individually significant are
assessed collectively,

If there is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred. the amount of the loss 1s measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash Hows. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in
profit or loss.

All mdividually significant loans and advances and mvestment securities are assessed for specific impairment. Those
found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been ineurred but
not vet identified. Loans and advances and investment securities that are not individually significant are collectively
assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and investment securities with sinilar nisk
characteristics.
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Impairment of loans and advances portfolios is based on the judgements in past expenence of portfolio behavior.
In assessing collective impairment the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default. the timing of
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management's judgement as to whether current economic
and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.
Default rates. loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual
outcomes to ensure that they remam appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost are calculated as the difference between the carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash Aows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

In case of impairment of financial assets being loans and advances, the impairment loss amount is taken as higher
of amount derived as per norms prescnbed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as
per paragraph 63 of NAS 39 as mentioned above as per alternative given in carve out on NAS 39 Para 58.

However, as per carve out on NAS 39 Para 58, the Bank hag assessed and measured impairment loss on loan and
advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and
amount determmined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 390

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there i1s no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group. If in a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event ocourring afier the impairment was recogmized.,
the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off
1s later recovered. the recovery is recognized in the “Non Operating Income’.

Impairment aof investment in equify instrument classified as fair value through other comprehensive income

Objective evidence of impairment of investment in an equity instrument is a significant or prolonged decline n its
fair value below its cost. Impairment losses are recognized by reclassifyving the losses acoumulated in the fair value
reserve in equity to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that 1s reclassified from equity to profit or loss 1s the difference
between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repavment and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
recognized previously in profit or loss.

3.5. Trading Assets

Trading assets are those assets that are acquired prmcipally for the purpose of selling in the near term. or held as
part of a portfolio that 15 managed together for short-term profit. [t includes non denvative financials assets such as
government bonds, NEB bonds, domestic corporate bonds, treasury bills, equities etc. held primanly for the rrading
purpose. If a trading asset 1s a debt instrument, 1t 1s subject to the same accounting policy applied to financial assets
measured at amortized cost. If a trading asset 1s an equity instrument, 1t is subject to the same accounting policy
applied o financial assets measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss.

3.6. Derivative assets and derivative liahilities

Denvative assets and derivative liabilities create nights and obligations that have the effect of transferring between
the parties to the instrument one or more of the financial risk inherent in an underlying primary financial instrument.
However, they generally do not result in a transfer of the underlving primary financial mstrument on mception of
the coniract. nor does such a iransfer necessarily take place on matunity of the contract.

The value of a denvative changes with the change in value of the underlying. Examples of derivative are forward,
futures, options or swap contracts. The underlying could be specified interest rate, security price, commodity price,
exchange raie. price index, ete.

Denvative financial istruments meei the definition of a finaneial instnument and are accounted for as denvative
financial asset or dervative financial liability measured at FVTPL and comesponding fair value changes are
recognized i profit or loss. The Group has not designated denvative as a hedging instrument in an eligible hedging
relationship under NFRS 9 — “Financial Instrument” and has not applied hedge accounting.
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3.7. Foreign Currency
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilines denommated m foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated
into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate at that date and all differences arising on non trading activities
are taken to *Other Operating Income’ In the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated
into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate at the date on which the fair value is determined.

Foreign currency differences anising on retranslation are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

At the annual closing, if the revaluation loss is reported, the same is charged to Statement of Profit or Loss and if
revaluation profit 15 reported, such amount is shown as income n Statement of Profit or Loss and 25 percent of
such profit s appropriated to Exchange Fluctuation Reserve through Statement of Changes in Equaty as required by
Banks and Financial Institutions Act.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the imitial iransaction. Forward exchange contracts are valued af the forward

market rates ruling on the reporting date and resulting net unrealized gains or losses are dealt with in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

3.8. Property and Equipment
i) Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if 1t 15 probable that tuture economic benefits associated with the assets wall
flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. The cost includes expenditures that are directly
attnbutable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self constructed assets includes followings:

s (ost of materials and direct labour;

o Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended use; and
o (Capitalized borrowing cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure will
flow to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are expensed as incurred.
Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any.

Neither class of the property and equipment has been measured as per revaluation model, nor is their fair value
measured at the reporting date

On revaluation of an assel, anv increase in the carrying amount 15 recogmized in “Other Comprehensive Income’
and accumulated in equaty, under capital reserve or used to reverse a previous revaluation decrease relating to the
same asset, which was charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss. In this circumstance. the increase is recognized
as income to the extent of previous write down. Any decrease in the carmrying amount 1s recognized as an expense
in the Statement of Profit or Loss or debited to the Other Comprehensive Income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the capital reserve in respect of that asset

The decrease recogmzed in Other Comprehensive Income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under capital
reserves. Any balance remaining in the revaluation reserve in respect of an asset is transferred directly to retained
earnings on retirement or disposal of the asset.

b) Capital wark in progress

Capital work in progress 15 stated at cost. These are expenses of a capital nature directly incurred in the construction
of butldings and system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work in progress would be transferred to the
relevant asset when it 15 available for use, 1.e. when it is n the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
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of operating in the manner intended by management. Capital work 1 progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.
¢) Depreciation
Property and equipments are depreciated from the date they are available for use on property on straight-line method
over estimated useful lives as determined by the Management. Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss. Leased
assets under the finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and thewr useful life. Land 15 not
depreciated. Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier of the date from which the asset is classified as held
for sale or is derecognized.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property and equipment for current year and comparative periods
are as follows:

Class of Assets Useful Life Rate of Depreciation
Building 20 years 5%
Metal Furniture 6 years 16.67%
Wooden Furniture 5 years 20%
Office Vehicles 7 years 14.29%
Computer [including Printer) 4 years 25%
Office Equipments 5 years 20%

The expenses of leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease period or a maximum of 10 year period.
whichever is lower.

The capitalized value of software purchase and installation costs are amortized over a maximum 5 year period
or within the ownership penod.

Assets costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully depreciated in the vear of purchase. For assets purchased/ sold during
the vear, depreciation 15 provided up to the date of use on pro-rata basis.
Depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted. if any.
) De-recognifion
The carrying amount of an item of property and equipment 15 derecognized on disposal or when no fulure economic
benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of property and equipment
is included 1n the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item 1s derecogmzed. When replacement costs are recopnized
in the carrying amount of an item of property and equipment, the remaming carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. Major inspection costs are capitalized. At each such capitalization, the remaimng carrying amount of
the previous cost of mspections is derecogmized.

Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.
3.9, Intangible Assets

The intangible assets mnclude software purchased by the Group. Software 15 measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment loss if any. Software 15 amortized on a straight line basis m profit or
loss over its useful life. from the date that 15 available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current
and comparative peniods is five vears. Amortization method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each
reporiing date and adjusted, if any.

The goodwill 15 mitially measured at the difference between the purchase consideration given and the fair value of
net assets acquired. Subsequent to the initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is presented with intangible assets.

Recognition

An mtangible asset 1s an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, for rental to others or for admimstrative purposes. An mtangible asset 1s recognized
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if it 1s probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost
of the asset can be measured reliably. An intangible asset is mitially measured at cost. Expenditure incurred on an

intangible item that was initially recognized as an expense by the Group in previous annual financial statements or
interim financial statements are not recognized as part of the cost of an ntangible asset at a later date.

Computer Safiware & Licenses

Cost of purchased licenses and all computer software costs mcurred, licensed for use by the Group, which are not
integrally related to associated hardware, which can be clearly identified, reliably measured. and it's probable that
they will lead to future economic benefits, are included in the Statement of Financial Position under the category
‘Intangible assets” and carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent Expenditure

Expenditure incurred on software 18 capitalized only when it 1s probable that this expenditure will enable the asset to
generate future economic benefits in excess of its ongmally assessed standard of performance and this expenditure
can be measured and atiributed to the asset reliably. All other expenditure 1s expensed as incurred.

Goodwill 1s measured at cost less accumulated impaimment losses
Amaortization af Infangible Assets

Intangible assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on a straight-line basis in the Statement of Profit or Loss from
the date when the asset is available for use. over the best of s useful economic hife based on a pattern 1n which
the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the Group. Amortization methods, useful lives, residual values are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate. The Group assumes that there 1s no residual value
for its intangible assets.

De-recognition of Infangible Assets
The carrving amount of an item of mtangzible asset 1s derecognized on disposal or when no future econonuce benefits

are expected from its use. The gain or loss ansing on de-recognition of an 1tem of intangible assets 1s included in the
Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.

3.10. Investment Property

Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental ncome or for capital appreciation or for
hoth, but not for sale m ordinary course of business and owner occupied property. The Group holds mvestment
property that has been acquired through the enforcement of security over the Loans and Advances.

Investment property is measured at cost. The panchakrit value of the property that has been acquired through the
enforcement of secunty over the loans and advances have been considered as the cost of the property.

Investment properties are derecognized when they are disposed of. or permanently withdrawn from use, since no
future economic benefits are expected. Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is recognized in profit
or loss. When the use of a property changes such that 1t 1s reclassified as property and equipment, its fair value at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent reporting.

3.11. Income Tax

Income Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized m profit or
loss except to the extent they relate to the items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i) Current Tax

Current tax 15 the tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the vear using tax rates that are enacted
or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax 1s recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrving amount and tax base of assets

and hiabilities; and carry forward of unused tax losses. Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rate that is expected to be
applied to temporary differences when they reverse. using tax rate enacted or substantially enacted ai the reporting
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date. Deferred tax assets are recogmzed only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which it can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and appropniately
adjusted to reflect the amount that 1s reasonably/ virtually certain to be realized.

Deferred tax asset and deferred tax habilities are offset if all of the following conditions met:
a) 1fthere is a legally enforceable right to offset the current tax liabilities and assets:
b) the taxes are levied by the same authority on the same tax entity; and

¢) the entity intends to settle the current tax liabilities and assets on net basis or the tax assets and liabilities will
be realized simultaneously.

3.12. Provisions and Conlingent Assets/ Liabilities

The Group recognizes a provision 1f, as a result of past event, the Group has a present constructive or legal obligation
that can be reliably measured and it is probable than an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligation. A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there 1s a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote. no provision or disclosure is made.

A provision for onerous contract 1s recognized when the expected benefits to be denved by the Group from a
contract are lower than the unavodable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation. the provision is reversed. Contingent
assets are not recognized m the financial statements, However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it
15 virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. the asset and related income are recognized in the
penod in which the change occurs.

Liabihites on account of denvanve contracts are reported under Contingent Liabiliies under sub- heading

Outstanding Liabilities for Forward Exchange Contract. These mclude notional principal on outstanding forward
rate agreements. The Forward Exchange Contract is marked to market and resulting difference is recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss. The difference payable/ receivable that anises at the time settlement of Forward Exchange
Contract is recognized at the time of settlement.

3.13. Deposits, Debt Securities Issued and Subordinated Liabilities

Deposits, debt securities 1ssued and subordinated liabilities are the Group's sources of debt funding.

Deposits comprises of financial liabilities incurred by the Group on account of deposit amount held of the customers
and other Banks and Financial Institutions.

Debt securities 1ssued are financial habilities instrument 1ssued to raise fund for the Group.

Subordinated Liabilities are debt mstruments issued under the conditions of subordinate prionty relative to other
liabihities incurred by the Group.

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated habilities are imtially measured at fair value minus incremental
direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortized cost using the effective interest method.

3.14. Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of mterest income, fees and commussion, foreign exchange mcome. cards income, disposal
income, etc. Revenue 1s recognized to the extent it 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of
income 1s not probable. The bases of mcome recognition are as below:

i) Inferest income

Interest mcome 15 recognized in profit or loss using effective wnterest method. Effective interest raie 15 the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected hife of financial asset
or liability to the carrying amount of the asset or liability. The calculation of effective interest rate includes all
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transactions cost and fee and points paid or received that are integral part of the effective interest. The transactions
cost and fees and points that are not material 1.e. below or equal to 1% of financial asset or liability and for financial
asset or liability with tenure of up to 1 year have been recognized directly in Statement of Profit or Loss and not
considered in the calculation of effective interest rate. The transaction costs include mcremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets.

Interest income presented in Statement of Profit or Loss includes:

e [nterest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost caleulated on an effective interest rate method.
except for impaired loans and advances, These financial assets include investment in government securities,
investment in corporate bonds. investment in NRB Bond and deposit instruments, reverse repos, inter bank
lending, etc.

As per carve out on NAS 39 Para 9, the Group has not included the fees and pomts paid or recerved in loans
and advances that are immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably the effective interest rate and have
recognized them directly as revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Similarly, as per carve out on NAS 39 AG 93, the Bank has applied the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset 1s written off either partially or fully.

Interest on investment securities measured at fair value 1s calculated on effective interest rate.

¢ [ncome on discounted mstruments hike bills purchased, documents negotiation 15 recognized over the period of
discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate.

Interest income on all trading assets are considered to be incidental to the Group’s trading operations and are
presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.
Revenue is recogmzed only when it 15 probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow

to the entity. In some cases. this may not be probable until the consideration is received or until an uncertainty is
removed.

b) Fees and Commission

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included in
measurement of effective mnterest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fee, service
charges, syndication fee. forex transaction commission, commussion of 1ssue of letter of credit and guarantee are
recognized as the related services are performed. When the loan commitment is not utilized to the extent of approved
limit, the related commitment fees are recogmzed on undrawn amount on straight line basis over the period of
commitment. Following bases are adopted for recogmition of fees and commission;

¢ Commission on guarantees 1ssued by the Group 1s recognized as mcome over the period of the guarantee,
except for guarantee commission not exceeding Rs. 10 thousand. which is recognized at the time of its issue.

o Commission on Letters of Credit (LC) 1ssued by the Group 1s recognized as income, over the period of LC
EXPITY.

e  Other fees and commission income are recognized on accrual basis.

¢) Dividend Income

Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized when the right to receive pavment is established.
Dividend income are presented in net trading income, net income from other financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss or other revenue based on the underlving classification of the equity instruments.

i) Net Trading Income

Trading income/ loss is recognized for all realized interest. dividend and foreign exchange differences including
any unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities. The trading income and loss are netted off and
disclosed separately in Statement of Profit or Loss.
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¢) Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Net income from other financial instruments at FVTPL relates to non-trading derivatives held for nisk management
purposes that do not form part of qualifying hedge relationships, financial assets and financial habilities designated
as at FVTPL and non-trading assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL. The line item mcludes fair value changes.
interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

3.15. Interest Expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective interest
rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Group's trading operations
and are presented together with all other changes i fair value of trading assets and habilities in net trading income.

3.16. Employee Benefits
a) Short Term Emplayee Benefiis

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service 1s provided. A liability is also recogmzed for the amount expected to be paid under bonus required by the
Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the emplovee and the obhigation can be
estimated reliably under shori term employee benefits.

Short term emplovee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period):

e wages, salaries and social security contributions:

o profit-sharing and bonuses; and

® pon-monetary benefits

b) Post Employment Benefit Plan

Post employment benefit plan includes followmgs:

i.  Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contnbution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays a fixed contnbution to
a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts. Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution plans are recogmzed as personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which
the related services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset 1o the extent
that cash refund er reduction in future payments 15 available. Contmbutions to a defined contribution plan being
due for more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee render the service are discounted
at their present value. The following are the defined contnbution plan provided by the Group to its employees:

o Employees Provident Fund

In accordance with law. all employees of the Group are entitled to receive benefits under the provident
tund, a defined contribution plan 1n which both the employee and the Group contnibute monthly at a pre
determined rate (currently. 10% of the basic salary plus grades). Group does not assume any future liability
tor provident fund benefits other than 1ts annual contribution.

Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan 15 a post employment benefit plan other than a defined contnibution plan. The Group’s
net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have eamed in retumn for their service m current and pnor periods. That benefit
1s discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecogmzed past service costs and the fair value of any plan
assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds, that
have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group's obligation and that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits are expected to be paid. The caleulation of obligation 15 performed annually by a qualified
actuary using projected unit credit method.
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The Group recognizes all re-measurement gains and losses ansing from defined benefit plans immediately
in other comprehensive mcome and all expenses related to defined benefits plans in employee benefit are
expensed i profit or loss.

The Gratuity is the defined benefit plans provided by the Group 1o iis employees:
s Grafuiry

Group provides for pranuty on acerual basis covering eligible emplovees in terms of Employee Service
Byvelaws of the Group. The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested emplovees at retirement or
upon death while in employment or on termination of emplovment for an amount equivalent defined davs’
ehigible salary payable for each completed vears of service.

c) Other Long Term Employee Benefits

Other long term employee benefits clude benefits that are not expected to be seitled wholly before twelve months
after end of the fiscal year in which employees render the related service

The Group recognizes all re-measurement gains and losses mcluding all service cost and interest cost related to
other long term employee benefits in profit or loss account.

The Sick and Home Leave are the other long term employee benefit plans provided by the Group to its employees:
o [Leave Salary

The emplovees of the Group are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed unutihized leave subject to a
maximum limit. The emplovees can encash unavailed’ unutilized leave partially in terms of Employee Service
Byelaws of the Group. The Group accounts for the liability for entire accumulated outstanding leave balance
on actuarial basis.

if) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recogmzed as expense when the Group 15 demonstrably commutted, without realistic

possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termunation benefits to employees as a result of an offer
made o encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits are recornized if the Group has made an offer for
voluntary redundancy. 1t 1s probable that the offer will be accepted and the number of acceptance can be measured
reliably. If the benefits are payable in more than 12 months afier the reporting date, they are discounted 1o their
present value.

3.17. Leased Assets:

The determination of whether an arrangement 15 a lease or it contains a lease. 1s based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
spectfic asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a night to use the asset.

Finance Lease

Agreements which transfer to counterpariies substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
assets, but not necessanly legal title, are classified as finance lease, When group is the lessor under finance lease, the
amounts due under the leases. after deduction of unearned interest income. are ineluded in “Loans to & receivables
from other customers’, as appropriate. Interest income receivable 1s recognized in “Net interest income” over the
periods of the leases so as o give a constant rate of return on the net investment in the leases.

When the Group is a lessee under finance leases, the leased assets are capitalized and mcluded in “Property, plant
and equipment’ and the corresponding liability to the lessor 1s mcluded n “Other habilities’. A finance lease and
1= r:mrespuuding liability are recognized imtially at the fair value of the asset or if lower, the present value of the
nunimum lease payments. Finance charges payable are recognized i “Interest expenses’ over the peniod of the lease
based on the interest rate implicit in the lease so as (o give a constant raie of interest on the remaining balance of the

habihity.
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Operating Lease
All other leases are classified as operanng leases. When acting as lessor, the Group includes the assets subject
to operating leases in “Property, plant and equipment” and accounts for them accordingly. Impairment losses are
recognized to the extent that residual values are not fully recoverable and the carrving value of the assets is thereby
impaired.
When the Group is the lessee, leased assets are not recogmzed on the Statement of Financial Position.
Rentals payable and receivable under operating leases are accounted for on a straight-line basis over the penods of
the leases and are included in 'Other operating expenses’ and *Other operating income,’ respectively.
Pavments made under operating lease are recogmzed in profit or loss on straight line basis over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives recerved are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense. over the term of the lease.
Minimum lease payments made under finance lease are apportioned between the finance expense and reduction of
outstanding liabilines. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease ternm so as to produce the
constant penodic rate of mterest on the remaining balance of habilities.

Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the mmimum lease payments over the remaming term of
the lease when the lease adjustment 15 confirmed.

3.18. Financial Guarantees and Loan Commitments

Financial guaraniees are contracts that require the Group o make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make pavment when 1t 1s due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. “Loan commitments” are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and
conchtions.

Financial guarantees and loan commitments are disclosed as contingent hiabilities and not recorded n Statement of
Financial Position. Liabilities ansing from financial guarantees and loan commitments are settled and included
loans and advances as recevables from debtors (borrowers).

3.19. Share Capital and Reserves
it} Share Capital

The Group classifies the capital instruments as equity tnstruments or financial liabilities in accordance with the
substance with the contractual terms of the mstruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in total assets of
an enfity afier deducting all 1ts liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the Group and distributions
thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.

The Group is required to maintaim the capital adequacy ratic imposed by the regulator, The ratio 15 fixed at 11% for
current vear and the Group has maintained the required ratio.

b) Share Issue Costs

Incremental costs directly atiributable 1o 1ssue of an equity mstrument are deducted from the mitial measurement of
the equity mstruments,

3.20. Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Group by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the penod. Diluted EPS 1s determined by adjusting the profit or loss attnbutable
to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.21. Segment reporting

The Group has identified the reportable segment as the business activities from which it eams revenues and incurs
expenses whose operating results are reviewed by the management 0 make decision about resource allocation to
each segment and assess its performance.
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The Bank comprises Banking, Treasury, Cards and Remittance as major business segments on the nature of products
and services of the Bank. All transactions between segments are conducted on pre-determined transfer price with
Corporate Office. Treasury Department acts as the fund manager of the Bank.
Serment resulis that have been reported include ttems directly attributable 1o a seement as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis. The mcome, expenses. assests & liabilities that cannot be allocated to segments
identified or those related 1o corporate office are unallocated. Unallocated ttems comprise mainly corporaie asseis
(primarily the Bank’s corporate building), head office expenses, and tax assets and habilities that are categonized as
the Banking_
3.22. Non Current Assets Held for Sale

Mon current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale and camed at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, if their camrying amount 1s recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than throngh contimiing use. The assets are not depreciated or amortized wlale they are classified as held for
sale. Any impairment loss on mitial classification and subsequent measurement 1s recogmized as an expense. Any
subsequent increase mn fair value less costs o sell (not exceeding the aceumulated impairment loss that has been
previously recogmzed) 1s recogmzed n profit or loss.

3.23. Impairment of non financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 1s an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimaies the asset’s
recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s far value of the Cash Generating Unit
{CGL) less cosis to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset i1s considered impaired and 15 written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash Hows are discounted to their present value using a pre-fax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset,
in determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model 1s used.

3.24. Evenis after the reporting period

Where necessary all material events afier the reporting date have been considered and appropriate adjustments or
disclosures have been made in the Financial Statements as per the NAS 5 Events After the Balance Sheet Date.
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Citizens Bank International Ltd.

Annexures to the Financial Statements
As on 32 Ashadh, 2075 (July 16, 2018)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

4.1
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Prévious Year

Cash in Hand

1,646,982 935

2,033,110,556

1,646,979,441

2,033,095,847

Balances with 8/Fls

1,828,024,800

1,715,775,871

1,725, 798,367

1,050,736,892

Money at Call and Short Motice

303,309,452

152,054,562

303,305,452

152,054,562

—
Other*

1,370,150,216

651,581,517

1,370,150,216

251,581,517

Tatal

5,148,467 404

4,552,522,507

5,046,237 676

3,887,468,818

" Other cash and cash equivalent includes bank balance held with Nepal Rastra Bank over and above the statutory Cash Reserve Ratio sequirenent.,

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

4.2
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Statutory Balances with NRB

3,690,192,293

2,190,896,703

3,690,192,293

2,190,896,703

Securities purchased under Resale Agreement =

Other deposit and receivable from NREB

Total

3,690,192,293

2,1590,896,703

2,190,896,703

Placements with Banks and Financial Instituitions

4.3
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Placement with Domestic B/Fls

43,110,784

195,601,621

43,110,784

195,601,621

Placement with Foreign B/Fls

1,946,767,574

1,372,412,796

1,946,767,574

1,372,412,796

Less: Allowances for Impairment

Total

1,989,878,358

1,568,014,418

1,989,878,358

1,568,014,418

Derivative Financial Instruments

4.4
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Held for Trading

Interest Rata Swap

Currency 5wap

Forward Exchange Contract

21,975,955

36,385,944

21,973,955

Others

Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchanpe Contract

Other

Tatal

21,975,955

21,975,955
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Other Trading Assets

4.5
Amonnt in NPR

Particulars

Bank

Currant Year

Previous Year

Teasury Bills

Government Bonds

MRE Bonds

Domestic Corporate Bonds

Equities

133,900,339

76,236,445

51442831

Other

Total

133,900,339

76,236,446

51,442,831

Pledged

MNon-pledged

76,230,446

51,442,831

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Bank

Current Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Cost Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

Cost | Fair Value

1. Other Trading Assets in Equities of the Bank

1.1 Soaltee Hotel Lid.
127.77 equity shares {including 26.77 bonus
shares) of Rs 100 each.

Criental Hotels Lvd,
1.476.18 equity shares (including 434.18
banus shares] of Bs 100 each

MNepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd.
4, 345,56 equity share (including 1285.31
bonus shares| of Rs 100 each

Asian Life Insurance Co. Ld.
8,442, 72 equity shares| including 325.72
bonus shares| of Rs 100 each

Mational Life insurance Ceo, Lid,
2,712 equity shares(including 755 bonus
shares) of As 100 each

Shikhar Insurance Co, Ltd.
2,649,688 equity shares{including 1202 bonus
shares) of Bs 100 each

Meco msurance Co, Lid,
3019.12 equity shares [including 349 banus
shares) of Bs 100 each

Prabhu Insurance Lid.,
4300, 74 eguity shares (including 556.60
bonus shares) of &s 100 each

Prakvhu insurance Lid -Promoter
30,728 equity shares{including 15,159 bonus
shares | of Rs 100 each

Siddhartha Insurance Lid,
8,211.32 equity share {including 1323.32
bonus shares| of Rs 100 each

31,047 44,498 31,047 44,497 40,107

TE5.050 75,000 516,650 79000 60,050 516,660

4562833 2470760] 3351417 se24me7| 45mIess 3,351,417

5,766,378| 1,520,362| 1,590,170\ B,260,395| 5,766,378 1,520,362 1,890,170

3,318,205 2,166,888( 3,318,205 3,118,800

4,464,558 3,528,912 aaea608| 2,810,250 3528012 3134715

1,574,032 1873322 1973m3 1873322 1,794,445

BEZ 342 1247397 147,580) 2,413,37% 982,323 4,287 397( 147580 2,413,375

10,696,922 765405 1005922 738761 9728458

5865811 1,452,308 5665811 1452308 1505400

Prudential Insurance Co. Lid.
661188 equity shares{including 112988
biamus shares) of Rs 100 each

Life Insurance Co. Nepal 1,372,088
637 8B equity shares{including 126.76 bonus

shares] of As 100 each
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Particulars

Group

Bank

Currant Year

Currant Year

Cost Fair Value

Cost Fair Value

Premier Insurance Co. Ltd.
164604 equity shares of Rs 100 each

2481030 1851795

2481,033] 1,851,795

MNLG Insurance Co. Lid,
1,250 equity shares of Rs 100 each

1708787 H162.500

1,708,787| 1,162,500

Luemibini Gengral Insurance Co. Lid.
1 bonus share

1244 550

1244 550

Chilime Hydropower Co. Led.
931.B6 banus shares

736,171

136171

Ridi Hydropowsr Development Co, L,
1,984.35 equity shares(including 219,39 bonus
shares) of Rs 100 each

245,385

752,886

245,365

Chhimek Laghubdtta Bikas Bank Ltd.
1,159, 24 equity shares(including 19934 bonus
shares)of As 100 each

1,081,731

1,051,743

First Micro Finance Development Bank Ltd.
3,579.38 equity shares (Including 326.55
benus shares) of Bz 100 each

1,933,332

2,104,065

1,633,332 2,116,500

Deprosc De've loprment Bank Lid
2983 64 equity shares {including 107964
bofius shares) of Bs 100 each

2230717

2,788,065

3,063,569

2,237.727| 2,788,065 3,063,569

1.21 Swabalamban Blkas Bank Ltd.
613 bonus shares

766,320

1,027 488

931,835

1,027 468 931,635

766,320

1.22 Nerude Laghubita Bikas Bank Lid.
1,154 38 equity shares(including 424.86 bonus
shares] of Bs 100 each

T35,735

13,831

1.3¥3.270

FA5.735 13,831 1,313,270

1.23 Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Ltd
DE8.75 equity shares {including 348,75 bonus
shares] of Bs 100 each

1,123,750

1277431

1,164,060

1,123,750| 1277431 1,164,050

1.24 Summit Micro Finance Dewelopment Band Ltd.
134 bonus shares

231 626

401, 084

2131 626 401 084

1.25 Mirdhan Utthan Bank Ltd.
1,668.37 equity shares (including 658,37
benus shares| of Bs 100 each

1,708,408

1,963

1,708,408 1,963

MMB Hybrid Fund L-1
315,4E0 units of As 10 each

3,067,001

3,154,800

3135871

3.154,800( 3057001 3,154,800 3,135871

Mabdl Equity Fund
225,299 units of As 10 each

2,221,448

2,252,990

2,252,990

2,252,990| 2,221448| 2,252,990 2,252,990

MIBL Pragati Fund
342 480 units of As 10 each

3,082,320

3,424,800

3,424,800

3.424.800) 3081320 34228800 3.424.E00

Laxmi Equity fund
292 478 units of As 10 each

2369,072

2,924,780

2,934,780

20924,780] 2,369,072| 2924,780| 2,924,780

1.30 Siddhrartha Equity Fund
800,000 units of As 10 sach

76418000

B000,000] 7,648,000

1.31 Samima Equity Fund

200,000 units of As 10 each

2,000,000( 1,512,000

2. Investrnent in Quoted Equity of the Subsidiary

2.1 Agriculture Development Bank
15 equity shares (including bonus shares) of As
100 each,

Bank of Kathmandu Lid,
510 equity shares (including benus shares) of
A5 100 each.

243,936

Century Comrmercial Bank Ltd.
717 equity shares (Including benus shares) of
As 100 each.
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Particulars

Everast Bank Lud. 154,711 1,041,810
132 equity shares of Rs 100 each,.

Global IME Bank Lid, ; 513,572 T83,760
202 isquity shares of Rs 100 each.

larata Bank Ltd, L680801( 1311228

Kumiari Bank Ltd, 54,100 251,136
2035 equlty shares of Rs 100 each,

Laxmi Bank Lid., I6. 464 15,950
7 equity shares of Rs 100 each,

Machhapuchhre Banlk Ltd. 951,118 B24, 960
1,294 sgulty sharas of Rz 100 each.,

nfega Bank Lid. 181,699 201,062
805 equlty shares of Rs 100 sach.

Mabil Bank Ltd. Promater Share 8082911 6479420
0,346 equity shares of As 100 each.

Mepal Bangladesh Bank Ltd, 341,700) 14821
444 equity shares [Including bonus shares) of
As 100 each.

Mepal Bank Ltd. = L047.500 900, 900

Mapal Irvestment Bank Ltd, Promoter Share 2704308 2381747
5,774 aquity shares of Rs 100 each.

MNMB Bank Led. - 1 M, 665

Prabhu Bank {Grand Bank) 171,666 214,855 265,930
918 equity shares of Rs 100 each,

Primix Commercial Bank Lia, 160,701 BS9,702
Sanirma Bank Ld. 32,300 139,213

Standard Chartered Bank Mepal Lid, 514,071 B12,430
1 eguity shares of Rs 100 each,

Sunrise Bank Ltd. 25,001 125,868
412 equity shares (Including benus shares) of
A= 100 each.

Alpine Development Bank Ltd. 485.578] 1,016,520

Harmro Bikash Bank 112,501 354,932
1,8ED equity shares (including bonus shares)
of Rs 100 wach,

Jyoti Bikas Bank
8,250 equity shares of Rs 100 each.

Kailash Blkash Bank
14 equity shares [including bonus shares] of As
100 each.

Pdahakali Bikash Bank . 323,001 331,968

Chvil Bank {ILFCO) 3378139 2.949,729| 2634 660
14,9493 aquity shares of As 100 each.

Soaltes Hatal Lid. 3,430 3430 3,610
12 equity shares of Rs 100 each,

AP| Hydropower Ltd, 574,711 1,190,708 BEd 915
827 equity shares of Rs 100 each,

Arun Hydropower Co., 4,481 57,960
Bastwa | Hydro Power Com, Ltd, 2,225,772 1,757,400
Chilims Hydropower Ltd. 1,637,795 1,037,400

Khamikhola Hydropower 1,600 3,328
16 equity shares of Re 100 each.
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Particulars

Ridi Hydropower Co. Ltd.
14 {including bonus shares) equity shares of As
100 each.

Life Insurance Co, Nepal 6,771,850 7257951 5540976
4,175 equity shares of Rs 100 each.
Lumbini Ganeral Insurance Co. Lid. - 1800 16,740

Matonal Lite Insurance Co. Lid. 13! 5129580 E382,035| 6595080
6,420 equity shares of Rs 100 each.

Meco Insurance Co,Lid, 847,485 A57.001) 1,5421.330
1,527 equity shares of Rs 100 each,
Mepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 1L0AT916( 9421893 7157136
10,682 equity shares of As 100 each.
Premier Insurance Co. Ltd. - 1,640
1 aquity share of Rs 100 each,
Prudential Insurance Co, Ltd, 1,560,000
2000 equity shares of RS 100 each,

Surya Life Insurance Co, Ltd, 354,000
5910 equity shares (Including benus shares) of
As 100 each.

Chhimek Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd, 932,251 383,351| 1352675
1,063 equity shares of Rs 100 each.

First Micro Finance Developmaent Bank Lid, 22480200 7431622 6567620
4, 164 equity shares of Rs 100 each.

Sanakisan Blkash Bank Ltd, 118,862 660,681 623,330
104 equity shares of Rs 100 each.

Swalamwan Bikash Bank - 1 47,034

Vijaya Laghuhitta Sanstha Ltd 115,515 235,029 18E,101
151 equity shares of Rs 100 each,

Lawmi Valua Fund 1 . 40,047 40,035 146,281
3778 units-of fs 100 each,

MABIL Balance Fund 1 - 356,683 408,760

MNEF 2078361 1146543 210770
210,777 aquity shares of Bs 100 each.

MNIBL Samriddhl Fund 1 2,065006| 2065892( 2275506
192,279 units of Rs 100 each.

MMBHF-1 1,988,670 1,985,563 1,530,380
195,159 units of As 100 each.

MME Sulav investment Fund 1 B.56648F| EB567069| BS550.487| 9336388
746,911 units of As 100 each.

SAEF 500,000 500,000
50,000 equity shares of As 100 each.

2.54 Siddhartha Equity Oriented Schems 5,745,745 6,745,745 6632918
559,268 units of As 100 each.

2.55 Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme 1 7,604 9,260

2.56 Mepal Investment Bank Lid,
{4 equity shares of Rs. 100 each)

2.57 SWapl
(6 equity shares of Rs, 100 each)

258 MIC Asta Bank Ltd.
(2 eqgulty shares of R, 100 each)

Total 130,311,413
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Loans and Advances to B/Fls

4.6

Amonnt in NPR

D s Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Loans to Microfinance Institutions 1,434,595,159 1,481,946,440 |  1,434,996,159 | 1,081,5946,440
Other - -
Less: Allowances for Impairment 14,349,962 14,819,464 14345962 14,819,464
Total 1,420,646,197 | 1,467,126,976 | 1,420,646,197 | 1,467,126,976
4.6.1 : Allowances for Impairment
Amount in NPR
S, Group Bank
Currenmt Year Previows Year Current Year Previous Year
Bafance at 1% Shrawan 14,819 464 15,427,066 14,819 464 15,427 066
Impairment Loss for the Year: = =
Charge for the Year - -
Recoveries/ Reversal (469,503) (607,601) {469,503) {607,601)
Amount Written Off - -
Balance at Ashadh end 14,349,962 14,819 464 14,349,962 14,819, 464
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7
Amount in NPR
P Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Currant Year Preévious Year
Loans and Advances Measured at Amortized Cost 57,030,539,049 | 47,357,120,046 | - 57,033,338.515 | 47,363,287,226

Less: impairment Allowances

Collective Impalrment 529,086,089 458,123,438 529,066,089 458,123 438

Individual Impairment 502,505,845 B83,662,353 802,505,845 283,662,353
Net amount 55,598,967,114 | 45,015,334,255 | 55,601,766,580 | 46.021,501,436
Loans and Advances Measured at FVTPL
Tatal 55,508,967,114 | 46,015,334,255 | 55,601,766,580 | 46,021,501,436

4.7.1 : Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Product
Amount in NPR
- i Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Product
Term loans 10,897,372,312 | 9,837,170,262 | 10,897,372,312 | 9,837,170,262
Overdraft B,256,514,857 6,711,028,227 8,256,514, 857 6, 711,028,227
Trust Receipty Import Loans 1,566,776,001 044,132,851 1,566,776,091 544,132,851
Demand and Other Warking Capital Loans 5,872,539.710 | 3,837,930,905 | S5,872,539,710| 3,837,930,906
Personal Residential Loans 3,697,308,849 2,765,467,133 3,697,508 849 2, 765,467,132
Real Estate Loans B6,716,167,342 5,446,413,211 6,716,167, 342 5446413211
Margin Lending Loans 2817552114 | 3,114,285476 | 2,817.552.114:.| 3.114,286476
Hire Purchase Loans #4795332,041 | 3271877967 | 4795332441 | 3271877967
Deprived Sector Loans 1,541,362 ,905 1,160,261,009 1,541,362 905 1,160,261,009
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Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Bifls Purchased

115,711,540

169,328,769

115,711,540

169,328,769

Staff Loans

303,200,446

227,253,553

303,200,446

227,253,593

Other

10,239,963,426

9,696,026,479

10,242,762,892

9,702,193,660

Sub total

36,820,401,533

47,181,136,882

56,823,200,999

47,187,294,063

Interest Receivable

210,137,516

175,993,164

210,137,516

175,993,164

Grand total

57,030,539,049

47,357,120,046

57,033,338,515

47,363,287,227

4.7.2 : Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Currency

Amoant in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Nepalese Rupee

56,902,652,694

47,006,753,577

56,805,452,160

47,012,920,757

Indian Rupee

United State Dollar

127,886,355

350,366,469

127,886,355

350,366,469

Great Britain Pound

Eurg

Japenase Yen

Chimese Yuan

Other

Total

57,030,539,049

47,357,120,046

57,033,338,515

47,363,287,227

4.7.3 : Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Collateral

Amount in NPR

Bank

Particulars.

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Secured

Meovabie, Immovable Assets

28,025,485,605

22,596,300,815

28,025,485,605

22,996,800,815

Gold and Silver

3,336,450,618

3,140,878,827

3,336,460,618

3,140,878, 827

Guarantee of Domestic B/Fls

Government Guaranbea

2,048,133

2,448,004

2,448,133

2,448,004

Guarantee of International Rated Bank

-

Coliateral of Export Document

897,846,206

292,282,700

a7 846,296

292,282,700

Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt

553,264,212

547,599,708

556,063,673

653,766,388

Collateral of Governement Securities

Counter Guarantee

Personal Guarantee

80,524,989

69,232.515

80,524,989

69,232,515

Other Collateral

24,896,755,384

20,183,356,675

24,896,755,384

20,183,356,675

Sub total

56,992,785,236

47,332,599,2432

56,995,584,702

47,338,766,422

Unsecured

37,753,813

24,520,804

37,753,813

24,520,304

Grand Total

57,030,539,049

47,357,120,046

57,033,338,515

47,363,287,227
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4.7.4 : Allowances for Impairment

Amonnt in NPR

D s Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Specific Allowances for Impairment
Balance at 17 Shrawan BB3,662,353 464,256,573 BE3,662,353 464,256,573
Impairment Loss for the Year:
Charge for the Year 18,843,492 419 405,780 18843492 419,405,780
Recoveries) Reversal during the Year
Wite-offs
Exchange Rate variance on Foreign Currency Impaimment
Other Mavement
Balance at Ashadh end 202,505,845 883,662,353 902,505,845 883,662,353
Collective Allowances for Impairment
Balance at 17 Shrawan 458,123,438 450,672,562 458,123,438 450,672,562
Impairment Loss for the Year: - -
Charge/ {Reversal) for the Year 70,943 652 7.450,875 70,943,652 7450875
Exchange Rate variance on Foreign Currency Impalrment - -
Other Movement - =
Balance at Ashadh end 529,066,089 458,123,438 529,066,089 458,123 438
Total Allowances for Impairment 1,431,571,934 1,341,785,791 1,431,571,934 1,341,785,791
Investment Securities 4.8
Amount in NPR
Sactliiiare Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Investment Securities Measured at Amortized Cost 5,457,642,301 &, 796,189,920 5,457,642 301 6,781,185,920
Investment in Equity Measured at FVTOCI 159,216,001 4,416,001 155,216,001 4,416,001
Total 5,616,858,302 6,800,605921 | 5/616,858,302 | 6,785,605921
4.8.1 : Investment Securities Measured at Amortized Cost
Amount in MPR
PRI Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Debt Securities - -
Government Bends 3,4032,.854,5939 6,472,102,546 | 34028549358 | 6,472,102,546
Government Treasury Bills 2,054, 787,363 309,087 375 2,054,787 363 309,087 375
Mepal Rastra Bank Bonds - -
Mepal Rastra Bank Depasits Instruments - -
Other - 15,000,000
Less: Specific Allowances for Impairment - -
Total 5,457.542,301 6,796,189,920 | 5,457,642301 | 6,781,189,920
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4.8.2 : Investment in Equity Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

Amonnt in NPR

Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Eqyuity Instruments
CQuoted Equity Securities 141,000,000 141,000,000
Unguoted Equity Securities 18,216,001 18,216,001 4,416,001
Tatal 159,216,001 155,216,001 4,416,001

4.8.3 : Information relating to Investment in Equities

Amount in NPR

Group
Farticulars Currant Year Provious Year
Cost | Falr Value Cost | Fair Value

1. Investment in Quoted Equity of the Bank

1.1 Citizens Mutual Fund- 1 141,000,000
15,000,000 unis of Rs 10 each

2. Investrment in unguoted equity of the Bank

2.1 National Banking Instiute Ltd. (MBI} 1,200,000} 1,200,000
12,000 equity Shares of Rs 100 each

22  Mero Microfinance Bittiye Sansthe Lid.
197 340 Equity Shares{including 59340 bonus
shares] of As 100 each

Credit Information Bureau **
14,963 Equity Shares (including 8313.50 bonus
shares) of As 100 each

24 Prabhu Capital Ltd 3,000,004 3,000,000
30,000 Equity Shares of Rs 100 each

Total 4,416,001] 4,416,001

Current Tax Assets 4.9
Amount in NPR

Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Currant Tax Assets
Current Year Income Tax Assets B51,001,752 571,345,982 651,001,752 571,345,982
Tax Assets of Prior Periods * -
Current Tax Liabilities
Cufrent Year Income Tax Liabilities 536,347,961 270,554,460 536,347,961 270,554,460
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods - -

Total 114,653,791 300,791,522 114,653,791 300,791,522

Investment in Subsidiaries 4.10

Amount in NPR
Bank

Current Year Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries - =

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries 117,204,000 67,000,000

Total Investment 117,200,000 67,000,000

Less: Impairment Allowances

Net Carrying Amount 117,200,000 67,000,000

Particulars
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4.10.1 : Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries
Amount in NPR

Particulars Previous Year
Cost Fair Walue

e85 O B, ..23ch
JLid,
[ shares of Bs. .._...each

Total

4.10.2 : Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
Amount in NPR

Previous Year
Cost Fair Walue

CBIL Capital Led
1,172,000 shares of Rs. 100 each

Previcws Year CBIL Capital Ltd
670,000 shares of Rs, 100 each

117,200,000 | 117,200,000

4.10.3 : Information Relating to Subsidiaries of the Bank
Amount in NPR

Bank
Current Year Previous Year
CBIL Capital Ltd 68 94% &7.00%

Particulars

4.10.4 : Non Controlling Interest of the Subsidiaries

Amount in NFR

Group
Current Year

CBIL Capital Ltd
Equity Interest Held by NCI{5%5) 31.06%
Praofit/ [Loss) Allocated during the Year
Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Ashadh end 2075
Dividend Paid to NCI

Particulars

Equity Interest Held by MCI %)

Profit) (Loss) Allocated during the Year

Accumulated Balances of NCl as on Ashadh end 2074
Dividend Paid to NCI
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4.11
Amonnt in NPR

Particulars

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Currant Year

Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Associates

Investment in Unquaoted Associates

23,903,192

31,751,500

17,351,500

31,751,500

Total Investment

23,803,192

31,751,500

17,951,500

31,751,500

Less: impairment Allowances
Met Carrying Amount

23,903,192 31,751,500 17,951,500 31,751,500

4.11.1: Investment in Quoted Associates
Amount in NPR

Previous Year
Cost Fair Walue

Total

4.11.2: Investment in Unquoted Associates
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Provious Year

Provious Yaar

Cost

Fair Value

Cost

Falr Value

. Mepal Clearing House Lhd,

2,851,500

2,951,500

2,951,500

2,951,500

35418 Equity Shares (including 5903 barnus
shiares) of Rs 100 each

. Megal Electronic Payment System Lvd,
150,000 Equity Shares of Rs 100 each

. Mero Micrafinance Bittiva Sanstha Ltd.
138,000 Equity Sheres of Rs 100 each

Tatal

15,000,000( 15,000,000 15,000,000 | 15,000,000

13.800,000| 13 800,000 13,800,000 | 13,300,000

17,951,500

23,503,192 | 31,751,500| 31,751,500 17,951,500) 17,851,500 31,751,500 31,751,500

4.11.3: Information Relating to Associates of the Bank

Amount in NFR
Bank

Percentage of ownership held by
the Bank

Current Year Previous Year
1. Nepal Electronic Payment System Ltd, B8.5T%
2. Nepal Clearing House Ltd, 1.64%
3. Mera Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. -

Particulars
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4.11.4 : Equity Value of Associates
Amount in NPR

Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Investment Property N _ ?ﬂlig
monet i

Bank
Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Investment Properties Measured at Fair Value
Balance as on 1% Shrawan, 2074

Addition) Dispozal during the Year

Met Changes in Fair Value during the Year
Adjustment/ Transfer

Met Amount

Investment Properties Measured at Cost
Balance as on 17 Shrawan, 2074 390,066,062 380,245,197 390,066,062 380,245,197
Addition/ Disposal during the Year {102,515,002) 9,820,866 (102,519,002) 9,820,866
Adjustment) Transfer
Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Impairment Loss
Met Amount 287,547,060 ; 390,066,062
Total 287,547,060 390,066,062

Property and Equipment 4.13
Amount in NPR

Group

Bl Computer & Equipment | Total Ashadh | Total Ashadh
Proparties | Accessories Flature & Others End 2075 End 2074

Cost
As an 17 Sheawan, 2073 581 38,007 | 99,601,060 ( 179092977 02,182 33 | 63,173 8E8 | 101 717 884 -| 165,169,581 -| 1,283,275 650
Addithon Suring the Year = = SE557 1618532 4232 368 108 826 - 4231 619 - B,425,972
Acfuisition 486,763,676 | 263,353 450 ( 1648E3974 1524 755 15997600 34,919 750 -| 60,268,782 - 203,316,997
Capitalizahon = Fa - - = = - 5 - =
Disposal during the Year . -| [I0,580,048] | (3428.668] | (513%.303] | (1595994 =] [&384,919) =] [47,202,535)
Adpestment; Revaluation

Balance as on Ashadh 1,068,151,683 | 384,954,510 ( 165,058,409 | 113,527,003 | 78,204,483 ) 135,146,542 - | #20,477,063 | 1,145519,693 | 1,145815,693
end 2074

Addition during the Year
Acquisiton 231139048 | TRTES| 11762791 | 63,754,887 | 101469307 | 13535938 <| 39003594 | 538,38 354
Capstalization
Disposal during the Year ] =| (%308205) | (S042.246) | (TOT2616] ) (1,378405) | (A0S0 | (HTIEE4E)
Adiustrment) Revaluation . 981,752 = = 1BB. 736 -1 [1,170,4E8)
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Balance as on Ashadh
end 2075

Depreclation and
Impairment

A an 1 Sheawan, 2073 -| 138143291 ( 107 A8B610.| 68,331,974 72,600,636 - | 110,663,700 -| 395,323,130

Depraciation charge for | 13,7573 | 15186857 | 12923916 12,076,187 =| 26,538,076 - 90,227 640
the Yiar

Irmpairment for the Year - - - : S E
Disposals - - [A0579.591) | (3A5%115) | (4.683.483) | (131232 - 6,330,317 =] [46,365,028)
Acdjustment

Balance as on Ashadh «| IN590884 | 93095556 | FIUBGTIS| 27411406 %3,386,761 =| 130,532,369 | 439,185.721| 439,185,711
end 2074

Impakrment for the Year . " x

Depreciation charge far -] 20863335 ( 15258783 25125129 17956530 15483367 - 30,151,085 124,983,243
the Year

Disposals ] = {4B04.876) | (4900608 | (5063.545] | (1,378426] < 480,111,360) | {26,058.814)
Adgstrment ] - 981,740 188,724 =1 [1,170,464)

Balance as on Ashadh o| smsseznz| 103731203 sE011296| 20304392 97667426 145,801,631 | 538110045 | 439185721
end 2075

Capital Wark In Progress <| 9135165 | 2459950 3 3 = - - 11,585,115 59,174,883

Nat Book Value
As on Ashadh end 2073 551,388,007 | 85,786,769 3,360,409 | 9,113,188 .| 5550581 BH7 951529
Ason Ashadh end 2074 1,068,151 683 | 337,363,646 36,040,227 51,777,781 B9,544, 705 -
Asan Ashadh end 2075 1,290,230, 731 | 403,243,262 74,528 308 49,825 385 97,546,223 | 2,127,954 165

Bark

Computer & Ecpul prnent Total Ashadh
Properties | Accesioriss Fiature B Dthers ; End 2074

Land Building

Cost
A an 1 Shrewan, 2073 581,388,007 | 95601060 17E.395.343 592,162,363 | 63,133 8148 | 100,794,446 165,115,355 1280604917
ffdition during the Year
Acuisiton 486,763,676 | 265353450 [ 164385974 | 13504755 15957600 34915760 B0, 248,782 803,316,947
Capitalizaton
Disposal during the Year -| [I0.580,048) | (3.458.668] ) (5,13%303) | {1,599.538) [B6,384 9149) (47,302,535
Addjustmenty Revaluation

Balance as on Ashadh 1,068,151,683 | 364,954,510 | 164,308,274 | 112,208,470 | 73982115 | 134.154.208 -| 218,999,218 | 2,136,718,479 | 2,136,718,473
end 1074

Additton during the Year
AL fuisiThon FTTIITTES | 11 735 7E7 63,511 7E7 | 101,286,407 | 13,306,663 38,932 425 537,619,845
Cagritalization - - -
Disposal during the yeaas 3 {5,308,265) | [(5.042.246) | (7.072.616]| (L37B.405] {10,921,317) | |29.722,848)
Adjusirment Revaluation 981,752 . 1ER, 736 {1,170, 4E8)

Balance as on Ashadh > 171,707,488 | 170,678,012 | 168,195,907 | 146,231,202 245,839,839 | 2,604 515,477
#nd 2075

Depreciation and
Impairment

As an 1" Shrawan, 2073 13,814,291 | 107471251 GB,321,974 | 22439853 | T,0774884 110,247 535 334,362,794

Deprecistion charge far 13776573 | 15115391 | 132,642,304 9437214 1198966 26,398,717 89,345,165
the Year

|l|‘|p-h|l‘ﬂ'|E|'|! bar thie Year
Disposals (30,579,801} | (3.453,115) | ¢4,683,483) | (1,312,133 [5,330,317) (46,365,028
Adffisstment

Balance as on Ashadh 52,006,651 17,506,163 | 27,173,550 | 2,754,728 130,315,935 | 437,346,531 | 437,356,931
end 2074

Isnpaiment for the Year

%3 andt anfir afdms sosw ey
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Depraciation charge for 20.563.33% | 15181824 | 2685631 17328305 15268295 29,892,228 123,319,621
thie Year

Disposals = 4,604.876) | (4.900.608) | (5.063.545] | (1,378.426) 110,111,360) | |26,058,814)
Adjustment 951,740 153,724 (1,170, 464)

Balance as on Ashadh 40,554,202 | 103,565,339 | $7,290186 | 39,433,350 | 964333 148,926,339 | 534,607,737
end 2075

Capital Waork In Progress 8,125,165 2453950 11,585,115
Nat Book Valus
Az on Ashadh end 2073 581,388,007 | B5,786,765 | 70838090 40,653,959 BH6, 141,673
A on Ashadh end 2074 1,068,151 6E3 | 337,363,646 A6, 808,525
A o Ashadh end 2075 1,200,250,731 | 403,243,262 | 70,602,098 128,757,557 : 1,121,502 854

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14
Amount in NPR

Total Ashadh
Purchased End 2074

Cost
As on 1" Shrawan, 2073 29,151,717 25151717
Addition during the Year 650,150 . 650,150
Acqulsition 5,542 B53 . 5,542,853
Capitalization - - -

Dispasal during the Year =
Adjustment/ Revaluation - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2074 35,344,720 35,344,720 35,344.720
Addition during the Year - -
Acnuisition 11,312,336 11,180,126
Capitalization - -
Disposal during the Year
Adjustment; Revaluation
Balance as on Ashadh end 2075 46,657,056
Amaortization and Impairment
As on 1° Shrawan, 2073 23,195,665 : 23,195,665
Amortization charge for the Year 3,415,371 . 3,415,371
Impairment for the Year . . -

Disposals

Adjustment - - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2074 26,611,036 26,611,036 26,611,038
Amortization charge for the Year 3,367,412 3,367,412
Impairment for the Year

Dispasals

Adjustment - =
Balance as on Ashadh end 2075 29,978,448 29,978,448
Capital Work In Progress 54,494,529 54,494,529
Net Book Value
As on Ashadh end 2073 5,956,052 5,956,052
As on Ashadh end 2074 8,733,685 =
As on Ashadh end 2075 71,173,137 71,173,137

angt arfuw afediza sowy ey %Y
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Amount in PR

Software

Purchased

Total Ashadh
End 2074

Cost

A5 on 1* Shrawan, 2073

29,049,717

29,049,717

Addition during the Year

Acguisition

5,342,853

3,044,853

Capitalization

Disposal during the Year

Adjustment/ Revaluation

Balance as on Ashadh end 2074

34,592,570

34,592,570

34,592,570

Addition during the Year

Acguisition

11,180,126

11,180,126

Capitalization

Disposal during the Year

Adjustment/ Revaluation

Balance as on Ashadh end 2075

45,772,696

45,772,696

Amortization and Impairment

As on 1% Shrawan, 2073

23,182,965

13,182,965

Amortization charge for the Year

1,343,116

3,343,116

Impairment for the Year

Disposals

Adjustment

Balance as on Ashadh end 2074

26,526,081

26,526,081

26,526,081

Amortization charge for the Year

3,207,114

3,207,114

Impairment for the Year

Dispozals

Adjustment

Balance as on Ashadh end 2075

29,733,195

29,733,155

Capital Work In Progress

54,494,529

54,494,519

MNet Book Value

As on Ashadh end 2073

5,866,752

5,866,752

As on Ashadh end 2074

8,066,489

As on Ashadh end 2075

70,534,031

70,534,031

Deferred Tax

4,15
Amount in NPR

Current Year

Current Year

MNet Deferred
Tax Assets)
(Liabilities)

Net Deferred

Tax Assets/
[Liabilities)

Deferred Tax on Temporary Differences on
following items

Loans and Advances to B/Fls

Loans and Advances to Customers

Investment Properties

i86,264,118)

(86,264,118)

(86,264,118)

(86,264,118)

e
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Shrawan, 2073

Group Bank
Current Year Current Year
Particulars Deferred | Deferred Tax “,'r::m""' Deferred | Deferred Tax ':;‘lﬂ:f
Tax Assets Liabilities (Liabilities) Tax Assets Liabilites (Liabilities)
Investment Securities 2,700,000 2,700,000 | 2,700,000 2,700,000
Property and Equipment 1,114,519 [35,546) 1,078,973 | 1,114,519 1,114,519
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 2,806,662 . 2,806,662 | 2,797.346 2,797 346
Lease Liabilites (3,791,007} |  (3,791,007) (3,791,007 {3,791,007)
Provisions - -
Other Temporary Differences 2411421 (383,125) {383,125) [383,125) {383,125)
Defarred Tax an Temporary Differences 9,032,609 | (90,473,796) | (81,441,195) | 6,611,865 | (90,438,251) | (83,826,386)
Deferred Tax on Carry Forward of Unused Tax 66,148,287 66,148,888 | 66,148,887 b6, 148,887
Losses
Deferred Tax Due ta Changes in Tax Rate
Met Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities] as on year {15,292,307) {17,677,493)
end of Ashadh 2075
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on 1¢ 185,477,182 (85,192,158)
Shrawan, 2074
Origination/ (Reversal) during the Year 70,184,876 67,514,659
Deferred Tax Expense/ (Income) recognized in (70,184, 876) (63,586,765)
Profit or Loss
Deferred Tax Expense/ {Income] recognized in {3,927,894) (3,927,894)
Other Comprehensive income
Deferred Tax Expensef (Income) recognized
directly in Equity
Group Bank
Previous Year Previous Year
Particulars Deferred | Deferred Tax HT::IJIEfﬂredr Deferred | Deferred Tax ';itlml m,
Tax Assets Liabilities (Liabilities) Tax Assets Liabilites (Liabilities)

Deferred Tax on Temporory Differences on
following items
Loan and Advances to B/Fls - - - -
Loan and Advances to Customers {52,797.949) | (52,797.949) (52,797.948) | (52,797.945)
Investment Properties - | (117,019,819) | (117.019,815) (117,019,819) | (117,019,819}
Investment Securities - - -
Property and Equipment 5,604 498 (1,140,087} 0,409.474 | 9,694 498 9,694 498
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 1,240,189 = 1,240,189 | 1,240,189 1,240,189
Lease Liahilities (2,251,076} {2,251,076) 12,251,076) (2,251,076)
Provisions - -
Other Temporary Differences - (555,354) {555,354) [555,354) [555,354)
Deferred Tax on Temporary Differences 10,934,687 | (172,624,199) | (161,974,535) | 10,934,687 | (172,624,199) | (161,6389,511)
Deferred Tax on Carry Forward of Unused Tax 76,457,353 . 76,497,353 | 76,497 353 76,497,353
Lasses
Deferred Tax due to Changes in Tax Rate -
Net Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) as on year (85,477,182) (85,192,158}
end of Ashadh 2074
Deferred Tax Asset/ {Liabilities) as on 1* 177,416,441 177,416,441

ant arfiw gfed=sa sowy ey

5%




Hank

cmzens / oot

FOURPARTRER FD

EPROGRESS

Pravious Year

Previous Year

MNet Deferred
Tax Assets)
(Liabilities)

MNet Deferred
Tax Assets/
{Liabilities)

Origination/ [Reversal) during the Year

(262,893,623

(262,608,593)

Deferred Tax Expense/ (Income) recognized in
Profit or Loss

(262,893,623)

(262,608,599)

Deferred Tax Expense/ (Income) recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income

Deferred Tax Expense/ (Income) recognized in
directly in Eguity

Other Assets

4.16

Amount in NPR

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Assets Held for Sale

139,926,834

129,926,834

Other Non Banking Assets

Bifls Receivahle

Accounts Receivable

1,142 556,928

548,134,865

1,179,801,652

470,687,359

Accrued Income

1,322,166

15,482,497

319,557

Prepayments and Deposit

121,145,347

30,721,304

113,602,658

24,468,537

Income Tax Deposit

18,769,113

18,769,113

18,769,113

18,769,113

Deferred Employee Expenditure

180,858,590

181,183,252

180,958,590

181,183,252

Other

21,664,170

9,217,599

8,620,392

6,324,022

Tatal

1,486,416,314

1,343,435,463

1,502,271,962

1,331,359,117

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions

4.17

Amount in NPR

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Money Market Deposits

Interbank Borrowing

£,250,000,000

1,500,000,000

2,550,000,000

1,500,000,000

Other Deposits from B/Fis

785,288,532

1,001,906,804

785,288,532

1,001,%06,804

Settlement and Clearing Accounts

Other Deposits from B/Fls

Total

2,501,906,804

3,335,288,532

2,501,906,804

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

4.18

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Refinance from MRB

695,041,370

33,578,077

595,041,370

33,578,077

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of Last Resort Facility from NRB

Securities 5old under Repurchase Agreements

Other Payvable to NRE

Total

33,578,077

695,041,370

%9
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Derivative Financial Instruments

4.19
Amonnt in NPR

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Farward Exchange Contract

Others

Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contract

Other

Tatal

Depaosits from Customers

4. 20
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Institutional Customers:;

Term Deposits

25,766,302,199

21,945,793,276

25,851,302,199

21,960,793,276

Call Deposits

3,030,366,310

3,507,665,983

3,035,572,647

3,508,371,444

Current Deposits

2,224 805,322

1,255,995,114

2,224,810,322

1,255,%95,114

Other

272,840,189

260,678,875

272,840,189

260,678,875

Individual Customers:

Term Ceposits

15,081,157,061

12,861,702,096

15.081,157,061

12,861,702,096

Saving Deposits

13,611,255,643

10,623,211,413

13,611,255,643

10,623,211,413

Current Deposits

331,024,877

188,151,596

331,024,877

188,151,596

Other

288,064 035

657,770,839

288,064,035

657,770,839

Total

60,605,815,636

51,700,969,191

60,696,026,972

51,716,674,652

4.20.1: Currency wise Analysis of Deposit from Customers

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Nepalese Rupee

20,042,579,187

51,454, 287,467

60,132,790,529

51,469, 907 529

Indian Rupee

United State Dollar

554,120,409

230,938,894

554,120,409

230,938,894

Great Britain Pound

30,555

140,667

30,555

140,667

Euro

B,892,620

15,422,536

£,892,620

15,422,536

lapenese Yen

192,859

179,626

192,859

179,626

Chinese Yuan

Other

Total

60,696,026,972

51,716,674,652

ant arfiw gfed=sa sowy ey
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4.21
Amonnt in NPR

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Insttutions

Other

Sub total

Foreign Bormowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions

Multilateral Development Banks

Other Insttutions

Sub total

Tatal

Provisions

4.22

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Bank

Previous Year

Provisions for Redundancy

Provisian for Restructuring

Pending Legal Issues and Tax Litigation

Onerous Contracts

Other - Previous Year Income Tax Provision

5,526,126

3,078,973

5,306,626

Total

5,526,126

3,078,973

5,306,626

4.22.1 : Movement in Provision

Amount in NPR

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Balance at 17 Shrawan

3,078,873

Provisions Made during the Year

2,447,152

3,078,973

5,306,620

Provisions Used during the Year

Provisions Reversed during the Year

Unwind of Discount

Balance at Ashadh End

Other Liabilities

4.23
Amount in NFR

Particulars

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Prévious Year

Liability for Employees Defined Bznefit Obligations

2,179 886

4,133,964

2,142,623

4,133,964

Liability for Long-Service Leave

7,181,863

7,181,863

Short-Term Emplovee Benefits

28,307

132,715

28,307

132,715

Bills Payable

79,850,035

67,045,774

79,850,035

67,045,774

Creditors and Accruals

23,150,522

21,199,271

20,201,332

20,219,283

Interest Payable on Deposit

162,563,714

92,617,474

162,563,714

92,617,474

%%
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: Group Bank
ERta Current Year Pravious Year Current Year Previous Year
Interest Payable on Borrowing 1B.BG2, 763 13,609,914 18,862,763 13,609,914
Liabilities on Deferred Grant income - -
Inpaid Dividend 71,936,209 77,553,337 71,023,877 58,203,937
Lease Liabilities 3,468,835 7,503,588 3,468,935 7,503,588
Emiployee Bonus Payable 189,651,677 157,810,783 189,651,677 157,810,783
Other - -
Card Payables 27,710,430 19,793,097 27,710,430 19,793,097
Unearned Commissions 48,857,046 26,142,457 48,857,046 26,142 457
Tax Deducted at Source 120,335,580 90,754,228 120,186,013 90,340,249
Retention Money 18,437 618 16,058,347 18,437,618 16,058,347
Prowvision for Expenses 15,577,126 15,816,751 15,577,126 15,816,751
Account Payable Others 765,019,799 1,270,770,307 662,234,287 613,501,192
Total 1,554,811,510 | 1,880,942,008 | 1,447,977,647 | 1,202,929,525
4.23.1 : Defined Benefit Obligations
The amoaits recognized in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows:
Amount in NPR
Partioutin Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Present Value of Unfunded Obligations 2142623 4,133,964 2,142,623 4,132,964
Present Value of Funded Obligations 51.373,775 34,604,096 51,373,775 34,604,096
Total Present Value of Obligations 53,516,399 38,738,060 53,516,399 38,738,060
Falr Value of Plan Assets 51,373,775 34,504,096 51,373,775 34,604, 096
Present Value of Net Obligations 2,142,623 4,133,964 2,142 523 4,133,964
Recognized Liability for Defined Benefit Obligations 53,516,399 38,738,060 53,516,392 38,738,060
4.23.2: Plan Assets
Amount in NPR
; Group Bank
Plan Assets comprise Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Equity Securities
Government Bonds
-Eank Deposit
Other 51373775 34,604,006 51,3737715 34,604,006
Total 51,373,775 34,604,096 51,373,775 34,604,096

4.23.3 : Movement in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations

Amount in NPR

Group Bank
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defined Benefit Obligations at 17 Shrawan 38,738,060 31,783,372 38,738 060 31,783,372
Actuarial Losses 756,288 {3.985,502) 756,288 (3,985,502)
Benefits Paid by the Plan (3,475,622) (3,012,631) {3,475,622) (3,012,531)
Current Service Costs and Interest 17,497,673 13,952 821 17,497,673 13,952 821
Defined Benefit Obligations at Ashadh End 53,516,399 38,738,060 53,516,399 38,738,060

ant arfiw gfed=sa sowy ey

o



Bank

e
Citizens | .

TOURPARTNER FORPROGRESS

4.23.4 : Movement in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Fair Value of Plan Assets at 1" Shrawan

34,604,006

34,604,095

Contributions Paid into the Plan

20,146,818

34,604,096

20,146,818

34,604,096

Benefits Paid during the Year

(3,475,622)

(3,475,622)

Actuarial (Losses) Gains

(3,336,692)

{3,336,692)

Expected Return on Plan Assets

3,435,176

3435176

Fair Value of Plan Assets at Ashadh End

51,373,776

34,604,096

51,373,776

34,604,096

4.23.5 : Amount Recognized in Profit or Loss

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Service Costs

14,537,653

11,417,117

14,537,653

11,417,117

Interest on Obligation

2,960,020

2,535,704

2,960,020

2,535,704

Expected Return on Plan Assets

{3,435,176)

Total

17,497,673

13,952,821

14,062,497

13,952,821

4.23.6 : Amount Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

Amount in NFR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss

(756,2288)

3,985,502

(756,288)

3,985,502

Total

(756,288)

3,985,502

{756,288)

3,985,502

4.23.7 : Actuarial Assumptions

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Discount Rate

B.00%

2.00%

B.00%

8.00%

Expected Return on Plan Asset

8.00%

4.75%

8.00%

4.75%

Future Salary Increase

7.50%

5.00%

7.50%

5.00%

Withdrawal Rate

10.50%

10.50%

10.50%

10.50%

Debt Securities Issued

4.24
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Debt Securities [ssued Designated as at Fair Value Through Profit
or Loss

Dabt Securities Issued at Amortised Cost

498,722,511

498,148 814

498,722,911

498,148,814

Total

498,722,911

498,148,814

498,722,911

498,148,814

a9
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Subordinated Liabilities

4.25
Amonnt in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares

Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares |Liabilities
Component)

Other

Total

Share Capital

4.26
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

£,033,236,400

6,921,689 662

£,033,236,400

,921,689,662

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component anly)

Irredemable Preference Shares (Equity Component anly)

Perpetual Debt (Equity Component only)

Tatal

6,021,689,662

8,033,236,400

4.26.1 : Ordinary Shares

Amount in NFR

Particulars

Bank

Previous Year

Authorized Capital

100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

10,000,000,000

Issued capital

80,332,364 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

[Previous Year 69,216,896.62 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each)

6,921,689,662

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

B0,332,364 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

B,033,236,400

[Previous Year 69,216,896.62 Ordinary $hares of Rs, 100 each)

921,689,662

Tatal

£,033,236,400

6,921,689,662

4.26.2 : Ordinary Share Ownership

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Percent

Amount

Percent

Amount

Domestic Ownership

Mepal Government

"A" Class Licensed Institutions

Other Licensed Institutions

Other Institutions

431,187,400

371,712,448

Public

3,912,630,700

3,369,459,871

Other

3,689,418,300

3,180,517,343

Foreign Ownership

Total

B,033,236,400

6,921,689,662
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4.27
Amonnt in NPR

Particulars

Group Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Statutory General Reserve

1,192,300,666

545,479,886

1,192,300,666

945,479,880

Exchange Equilisation Reserve

49,775,519

33,055,535

49,775,519

33,055,535

Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve

12,341,039

10,816,615

12,341,039

10,816,615

Capital Redemption Reserve

321,428,571

200,000,000

321,428,571

200,000,000

Regulatory Reserve

795,430,349

785,430,349

Investment Adjustment Reserve

135,200,000

85,276,000

135,200,000

85,276,000

Capital Reserve

Assets Revaluation Reserve

343,854,012

343,854,002

343,854,012

343,854,012

Fair Value Reserve

(6,300,000

{6,300,000)

Dividend Equalization Reserve

Actuarial Gain

4,081,628

6,847,663

3,882,577

Special Reserve

Other Reserve

1,717,677

2,137,849

Total

2,849,829,461

1,627,467,560

1,625,329,711

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

4,28
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Contingent Liabilities

4,325.083,670

1,546,975,526

3,145 232,710

1,546,975,528

Undrawn and Undisbursed Facilities

21,291,109,729

21,178 398 436

21,291,109,729

21,178,398 436

Capital Commitment

49,177,561

8,067,647

49,177,561

B,067,647

Lease Commitment

220,013,298

310,957,592

320,013,298

310,857,592

Litgation

63,557,281

53,454,143

63,557,281

53,454,143

Total

26,048,941,539

23,097,853,344

24,869,080,579

23,097,853,344

4.28.1: Contingent Liabilities

Amouant in NFR

Particulars

Group

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Prévious Year

Acceptance and Documentary Credit

1,562,257,180

671,535,000

1,562,257,180

571,539,000

Bills for Collection

83,382,584

21,051,526

£3,382,584

21,051,526

Forward Exchange Contracts

Guaranbees

1,464,529,092

843,337,000

1.464,523,092

843,337,000

Underwriting Commitmeant

1,153,860,960

Other Commitments

61,053,354

11 048,000

35,053,854

11,048,000

Tatal

4,325,083,670

1,546,975,526

3,145,222,710

1,546,975,526

b
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4.28.2: Undrawn and Undisbursed Facilities

Amonnt in NPR

Group Bank
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Currant Year Previous Year

Undisbursed Amount of Loans 13,224.868,234 | 14,988,061,622 | 13,224,868,234 | 14,988,061,622
Undrawn Limits of Overdrafts 3,185,902 518 2,718,035,530 | 3,185,902,518 2,728,035,530
Undrawn Limits of Credit Cards 106,677,323 - 106,677,323

Undrawn Limits of Letter of Credit 1,934,294,417 1.657.882,000 1,934,294 417 1,657,882,0:00
Undrawn Limits of Guarantee 2,830,367,237 1,804,419,284 | 2,839,367,237 1.804,419,284
Total 21,291.109,729 | 21,178,398,436 | 21,291,109,729 | 21,178,398,435

4.28.3: Capital Commitments

Capital Expenditure Commitments are approved by relevant authority of the Group but provision has not been made in financial

statements.
Amount in NFR
i Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Capital Commitments in relation to Property and Equipment
Approved and Contracted for 35,851,451 8,067 647 35,851,451 B,067 647
Approved but not Contracted for
Sub total 35,851,451 8,067,647 35,851,451 8,067,647
Capital Commitments in relation to Intangible Assets
Approved and Contracted for 12,196,109 12,196,105
Approved but not Contracted for 1,130,000 1,130,000
Sub total 13,326,109 - 13,326,109 -
Total 49,177,561 8,067,647 49,177,561 8,067,647
4.28.4: Lease Commitments
Amount in NPR
Group Bank
Ferticdary Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Operating Lease Commitments
Future Minimum Lease Payments under Non Cancellable
Operating Lease, where the Bank is Lessee

Mot later than 1 year 44 531,348 2,042 B54 47.012.121 2,042,854

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 167,158,529 63,725,049 160,681,621 03,725,049

Later than 5 years 121,437,885 245,189,689 116,419,556 245,189,689
Sub total 333,127,762 310,957,592 320,013,298 310,957,592
Finance Lease Commitments
Future Minimium Lease Payments under Non Canceliable
Operating Lease, where the Bank is Lessee

Mot later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than & years
Sub total
Grand total 333,127,762 310,957,592 320,013,298 310,957,592
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4.28.5: Litigation

The detail of contingent liabilities on account of pending litigation of the Bank are as mentioned below;

a.  Status of Contingent Liabilties for Tax Litigation cases pending as on 32" Ashadh, 2075

Tax Assessment Order Litigation of FY Pending at Amount

Citlzens Bank International Lid. 2063/64 (2006-07) | Supreme Court 5,376,087

Citizens Bank International Lid, 2064/65 (2007-08) | Supreme Court

Citizens Bank International Ltd, 2067 /68 (2010-11) | Revenue Tribunal

2,885,729

Citizens Bank International Lid.

2068/69 (2011-12)

Tax Administrative Review

8346517

Cirizens Bank International Lid.

2069/70 (2012-13)

Tax Administrative Review

12,396,861

People's Finance Ltd.

2067/68 (2010-11)

Tax Administrative Review

21,002,255

Mepal Housing and Merchant Finance Ltd.

2068/69 (2011-12)

Tax Administrative Review

3,446,694

Citizens Bank International Lid,

2070/71 (2013-14)

Tax Administrative Review

10,103,138

Total

63,557,281

Financial Year 2014-15 to 20016-17

The self assessment returns fled by the Bank for Financial Year 2071/72 (2014-15) to 2073/74 (2016-17) has not yet been opened

for reassessment by the Large Taxpayers Office.

Status of Contingent Liabilties for other pending litigations

As such, there are no other contingent liabilities that are likely to materialize against the Bank in case of other pending litigations,

Interest Income

4.29
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents

15,262,141

4,111,361

21,707,097

4,487,309

Due from Mepal Rastra Bank

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

67,930,816

67,252,551

67,930,816

67,252,551

Loans and Advances to Bank and Financial Institutions

155,980,578

104,236,277

155,080,578

104,236,277

Loans and Advances to Customers

6,488,332,187

4,618,868,292

6,488,757,635

4,632,276,885

Investment Securities

271,084,524

128,827,445

264,725,524

127,286,962

Loans and Advances to Staff

110,285,922

15,234,128

110,285,922

15,234,128

Other

705,446

9,423,867

9,423 867

Total Interest Income

7,110,181,614

4,957,953,921

7,109,387,573

4,960,197,979

Interest Expenses

4.30
Amoant in NPR

Particulars

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Prévious Year

Due ta Banks and Financial Institutions

46,955,382

75,465,362

46,955,382

75,465,362

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

9,520,460

1,714,729

9,920,460

1,714,729

Deposits from Customers

4,667,133,387

2,992 680,896

4,672,978,843

2,996,465,437

Borrowing

114,391,112

46,505,348

114,391,112

45,533,834

Dbt Securities Issued

43,074,007

42,913,098

£3.074,097

42,913,098

Subordinated Liabilities

Other

7,865,286

7,865,286

Total Interest Expense

4,881,474,938

3,167,144,719

4,887,319,894

3,169,957,746

9
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Fees and Commission Income

4.31
Amonnt in NPR

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan Administration Fees

289,565,738

208,701,019

289,565,738

208,701,019

Service Fees

10,309,652

5,111,506

10,309,652

8,111,506

Conzorbium Faes

79,026,862

24,687,822

29,026,862

24,687,822

Commitment Fees

3,705,509

3,344,288

3,705,509

3,344,288

B0/ TT/ Swift Fees

14,883,059

5,114,366

14,883,059

5,114,368

Credit Card/ ATM Issuance and Renewal Feas

40,027,593

44,075,509

40,027,593

44,075,509

Prepayment and Swap Fees

19,652,389

14,278,645

19,652,389

14,278,645

Investment Banking Fees

Asset Management fees

7,184,359

25,792 115

Brokerage Fees

=

Remittance Fees

22,438,154

23,518,784

22,438,154

23,518,784

Commission on Letter of Credit

39,497,017

29,877 932

39,497,017

29,877,932

Commission on Guarantee Contracts issued

46,269,284

30,106,411

46,269,284

30,106,411

Commission on Share Underwriting) [ssue

8,653,957

=

Locker Rental

4,434,125

3,641,425

4,434,135

3,641,425

Other Fees and Commission Incame

42,398,676

40,584,704

40,074,898

33,753,407

Total Fees and Commission Income

578,046,372

461,834,527

559,884,278

429,211,115

Fees and Commission Expenses

4.32
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

ATM Management Fees

2,665,030

2,564,456

4,665,030

2,564,456

WISAS Master Card Fees

15,801,735

18,399,674

15,801,735

18,399,674

Guarantee Cammission

16,542,600

1,359,555

16,542,600

1,359,555

Brokerage

o0/ TT/ Swift Fees

6,615,312

4,552,114

6,615,212

4,552,114

Remittance Fees and Commission

Other Fees and Commission Expenses

10,697,178

9,950,446

3,711,430

6,521,056

Total Fees and Commission Expenses

52,321,855

36,826,245

50,836,108

33,396,855

Net Trading Income

4,33
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Changes in Fair Value of Trading Assets

(27,168,362)

5,033,428

(18,579,744)

7,165,831

Gain/ Loss on Disposal of Trading Assets

257,405

6,750,742

257,405

6,750,742

Interest Income on Trading Assets

Dividend Income on Trading Assets

174,460

176,399

174,460

176,399

Gain/ Loss Foreign Exchange Tranzaction

199,222,366

122,701,396

199,222,366

122,701,396

Other

Net Trading Income

172,484,869

134,661,964

181,074,487

136,794,468
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4.34
Amonnt in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain

‘06,879,937

59,791,294

06,872 937

59,791,294

Gaing/ Loss on Sale of Investment Securities

(3,359,758)

{8,582,397)

Fair Value Gain/ Loss on Investment Properties

Dividend on Equity Instruments

5,750,461

5,066,778

5,600,709

8,556,068

Gain/ Loss on Sale of Property and Equipment

1,563,213

3,006,078

1,563,213

3,006,078

Gaing Loss on Sale of Investment Praoperty

2,054,301

3,203 497

2,054,301

3,203.497

Operating Lease Income

Gaing/ Loss on Sale of Gold and Silver

8,458 850

9,527,172

8,458,850

9,327,172

Locker Rent

Other

43,109,985

14,710,394

36,045,483

9,805,731

Tatal

124,457,490

86,722,816

120,696,494

93,889,840

Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for Loan and Other Losses

4.35
Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Pravious Year

Impairment Charge, (Reversal) on Loans and Advances to 8/Fis

Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) on Loans and Advances to
Custamer

89,316,642

(96,965,217)

B9,316,642

(96,965,217)

Impairment Charge, (Reversal) on Financial Investment

Impairment Charge/ [Reversal) on Placement with Bank and
Financial Institutions

Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) on Property and Eguipment

Impairment Charge/ [Reversal] on Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Impairment Charge/ [Reversal) on Investment Properties

Tatal

(96,965,217)

(96,965,217)

Personnel Expenses

4.36
Amount in NPR

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Salary

401,219,340

179,997,174

198,209,379

177,786,519

Allowances

150,053,517

139,607,915

148,729,757

138,547,184

Gratuity Expeanseas

14,062,497

13,952,821

14,062,497

13,952,821

Prowident Fund

16,862,364

15,179,015

16,600,772

15,058,369

Uniform

& 444,697

7,249,516

8,444,657

7,249,516

Training & Development Expense

15,493,317

9,246,743

15,493,317

9,246,743

Leave Encashment

61,305,622

974,315

61,805,632

974,315

Medical

—

-

Insurance

2,679,584

2,501,389

2,679,984

2,489,366

Employees incentive

10,421,478

16,513,953

10,421,478

15,313,953

Cash-Settled Share-Based Payments

Pension Expense

el
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: Group Bank
ERta Current Year Pravious Year Current Year Previous Year
Finance Expense under NFRS 72,823,672 6,508,792 72,549,771 6,508,792
Other Expenses Related to Staff 46,352,423 35,856,836 45,309,029 34,625,781
Sub total 600,318,911 427,588,468 554,406,304 421,753,358
Employees Bonus 189,651,677 158,331,967 189,651,677 157,810,783
Grand total 789,970,588 585,920,436 784,057,981 579,564,141
Other Operating Expenses 4.37
Amount in PR
oastttars: Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Directors' Fee 3,306,500 3,685,000 2,896,000 3,295,000
Directors' Expenses 2,706,449 1,703,478 703,854 1,691,718
Auditors” Remuneration 1,864,500 1,281,000 1,695,000 1,186,500
Other Audit Related Expenses 415,898 761,783 341,500 757,342
Professional and Legal Expenses 1,617,855 2,209,355 1,529,255 2,156,155
Office Administration Expanses 258, 584,266 215,852,213 231,790,008 212,255 405
Operating Lease Expenses 53,340,319 50,015,100 53,074,002 50,015,100
Operating Expense of Investment Properties = = =
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 17 176 888 6,558 488 12,126, 888 6,558, 488
Onerous Lease Provisions r - -
Other 41,201,780 31448017 41,201,780 31,448,917
Total 375,165,455 313,515,335 347,358 417 309,364,627
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38
Amount in NPR
b i Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Depreciation on Property and Equipment 124,583,243 80,299,894 123,313,621 89,349,165
Depreciation on Investment Property = - =
Amortisaton of Intangible Assets 3,367,412 3,343,116 3,207,114 3,343,116
Total 128,350,655 93,643,010 126,526,734 92,692,281
Non Operating Income 4.39
Amount in NPR
e Group Bank
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Recovery of Loan Writtan OFf 5,711,207 25,581,626 5711207 25,581,626
Other income
Bargaln Purchase Gain - 069,003,840 - 569,003,840
Othars 21,690,840 30,732,481 32,243,840 40,891,368
Total 27,402,047 725,317,947 37,955,047 735,476,834
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Non Operating Expenses 4.40
Amount in NPR

Group Bank

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan Written Off

16,717,011

105,936,458

16717011

105,536,458

Redundancy Provision

Expense of Restructuring

Other Expenses

Tatal

16,717,011

16,717,011

105,936,458

Income Tax Expenses

4.41

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Tax Expenses

536,347,961

266,285,162

536,347,961

265,337,676

Current Year

535,347,961

266,285,162

536,347,961

265,337,676

Adjustments for Prior Years

Deferred Tax Expenses

(65,686,933)

261,652,915

(63,586,765)

261,367,894

Orlgination and Reversal of Temporary Differences

(76,035,398)

246,657,270

{73,935,231)

246,657,270

Changes in Tax Rate

Recogrition of Previcusly Unrecognized Tax Losses

10,348 466

14,995,646

10,348 456

14,710,624

Total iIncome Tax Expense

470,661,028

527,938,078

473,761,196

526,705,570

4.41.1: Reconciliation of Tax Expenses and Accounting Profit

Amount in NPR

Particulars.

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Profit Before Tax

1,676,486,057

2,166,835,190

1,706,865,093

2,161,623,344

Tax amount at Tax Rate of 30%

512,059,528

£49,789,965

512,069,523

648,487,003

purpose

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax

Capital ltems Cost Upto Rs 5,000 Written Off

551,814

335,390

551,814

335,390

Unabsorbed Repairs and Maintenance

842,033

743,312

901,264

742,062

Staff Bonus pertaining to Final Dividend

238,158

238,158

Laan W /aff

31,780,937

31,780,937

Depreciation & Amortization

1.833,921

31,261,628

30,310,898

Gratuity & Leave Expense Provision

3,108,383

3,108,383

Carry forward of Unabsorbed Loss on Shares

6,966,728

-

6,966,728

Other Expenses

29,188 480

2,064,590

4,647,878

1,965,429

Effect of NFRS Adjustments from Profit Recanciliation

14,055,724

(167,361,052)

14,055,724

{167,361,052)

Less: Tax effect on exempt income

Dividend Income

(5,533,073)

{2,844,096)

{1,759,551)

(2,618,740)

Add/ Less: Tax effect on other items

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assat

(468,964)

(901,823)

(468,964

(901,823}

Gratuity & Leave Expense Provision

(14,814,825)

(14,814,825)

Depreciation & Amaortization

{11,058,211)

{1,186,211)

(9,593,100)

Recovery of Loan wioff

(1,713,362)

(10,875,466)

11,713,362

[7,674,488)

9E
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Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Excesss LLP Claimed

(14,021,715}

(232,841,477}

(22,611,333)

(232,841,477}

Carried Forward Unabsorbed Lossess of Acquired Institutions

(14,615,153)

(14,615,193)

(14,615,193}

(14,615,193)

Loss on Investment Measured at FYTOC]

(2,700,000

Interest Income on Accrual Basis

52,797,942

Staff Bonus pertaining to abovie

{5,279,795)

Interest u/fs 118 of Income Tax Act

Pricr Pericd Error effect

(7,653,604}

(7,693,604)

Total Income Tax Expenses

266,285,162

265,337,676

Effective Tax Rate

12.20%

12.27%
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Citizens Bank International Ltd.
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss

For the year ended 32™ Ashadh, 2075 (July 16, 2018)

Amount in NFR
Bank

Particulars -

Current Year

Previous Year

Met Profit or (Loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss

1,234,103 897

1,634,917, 774

Appropriotions:

4. eneral Reserve

(246,820,779)

(216,332,310}

b. Forelgn Exchange Fluctuation Fund

(16,719,984)

{14,947,824)

¢. Capital Redemption Reserve

(121,428,571

(100,000,000}

d. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

112,341,033)

(10,816,615)

e. Employees’ Training Fund

£ Other

{49,924,000)

(74,745,648)

Profit or [Loss) before Regulatory Adjustment

786,869,523

1,218,075,377

Regulatory Adjustment :

a, Interest Receivable [-)/ Previous Accrued Interest Received [+

(210,137,516)

b, Short Loan Loss Provision in Accounts -l Reversal [+

¢ Short Provision for Possible Losses on Investment -1/ Reversal {+)

d. Short Loan Loss Provision on Nen Banking Assets (<) Reversal [+)

(287,547,060)

e. Defarred Tax Assets Recognized (-l Reversal (+)

£ Goodwill Recagnized (-} Impairment of Goodwill {+)

g. Bargain Purchase Galn Recognized (-} Reversal [+)

(291,445,773)

. Actuarial Loss Recognized [-) Reversal [+)

i. Cther +-}

= Foir Value Loss on Investment in Eguity Instrument measured ot FYTOC! that will not be
classified to Profit or Loss

Distributable Profit or {Loss)

1,218,075,377

=9
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Citizens Bank International Ltd.
Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements as of FY 2074/2075

Amount in NPR

Statement of Financial Position

As per
Unaudited
Financial
Statemeant

As per
Audited
Financial

Statement

Varlance

In%

Reasons for Variance

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

6,067,830

5,046,238

{1,021,592)

Due to reclassification of investment greater
than 3 months ta investment securities

Due from MRR and Flacements with B/Fls

5,662,818

5,680,071

17,253

rue to reclassification to cash equivalent

Loans and Advances

58,548,540

57,022,413

(1,526,127)

Due to change in impairment provisions as
per carve-out

Investment Securities

4,535,107

5,616,858

1,081,752

Due to reclassification of investment greater
than 3 maonths to investment securities

Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates

135,152

135,152

Property and Equipment

2,115,400

2,121,593

Due to change in depreciation and priar
period error correction

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

70,534

70,534

Other Assets

2,203,500

2,017,095

(186,505

Due to creation of Deferred Tax Ligbilities
in audited financials against Deferred Tax
Aszet in Unaudited Financialz, change In
deferred employes expenditure and reclass
of interest accrued of investment securities

Total Assets

79,342,980

77,709,953

(1,633,027)

Capital and Liabilities

Paid Up Capital

8,033,236

8,033,236

Reserves and Surplus

4,619,633

7,980,675

(1,638,958)

Due to restatement of carried forward
retained earnings

Deposits

60,696,027

60,696,027

Barrowings

4,030,330

4,030,330

Bond and Debenture

498,723

498,723

Other Liahilitles and Provisions

1,465,031

1,470,962

5931

e to creation of Deferred Tax Liabilities
in audited financials against Deferred Tax
Asset in Unaudited Financials

Total Capital and Liabilities

79,342,980

77,709,953

(1,633,027}

Statement of Profit or Loss

Interest Income

7,002,697

7,109,388

16,690

Due to change in interest recognized on
accrual basis and staff finance income

Interest Expense

4,881,842)

(4,887,320

(5.478)

[ue ta change in deposit interest expenses

Met Interest Income

2,210,856

2,222,068

11,212

Fee and Commission Income

559,365

550,884

320

Due to booking of accrued fees and commission

Fee and Commission Expense

(50.836)

{20,.836)

MNet Fea and Commission Income

2,719,384

2,731,116

11,732

Other Operating Income

299,444

301,771

2,327

Due to booking of accrued interest left out

Total Operaing Income

3,018,828

3,032,887

14,059

Impairment Charge/ [Reversal) for Loans
and Other Losses

(10,034)

{89,317

{79,282

Due to change in indiwidual impairment
provisions and due to adoption of carve-
cut on foan impairment loss allowance

MNet Operating Income

3,008,734

2,943,570

{65,224)

Personnel Expenses

[752,069)

(784,058)

{31,989)

Due ta change in-staff finance cost and staff
bonus provision

Other Operating Expenses

(464,796}

(473,285

(2,089)

Due to booking of additional expenses
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As per Variance
Unaudited
Financial in amount In%
Statement :

Operating Profit 1,791,929 1,685,627 {106,302) -5.93%
Mon Operating Income/ Expense 21,249 21,238 {11) -0.05%
Profit Before Tax 1,813,178 | 1,706,885 | ([106,313) -5.86%

Income Tax (539,705) [472,.761) 66,944 | -12.40% | Due to change in deferred tax and profit
befare tax

Staternent of Financlal Position

Reasons for Variance

Profit/ {Loss) for the Period 1,273,473 | 1234104 | (39.369)| -3.00%
Other Comprehensive Income - (9,165) (9,165) | 100.00% | Due to actuarial loss on gratuity and loss on
equity investment measured at FVTOCI

Total Comprehensive Income 1,273,473 1,224,938 [48,534) -3.81%
Distributable Profit
Met Profity (Loss) as per Profit or Loss 1,273,473 | 1,234,104 {39,369) -3.09%
Add/ Less: Regulatory Adjustment as per | (308,561) | (1,242.665) 934,103 | -302.73% | Due to change in profit and changes In
MNRE Directive appropriation to regulatory reserves

Free Profit/ (Loss} after Regulatory 964,912 (8,561) | (973,472) | -100.89%
Adjustments
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5. Disclosures and Additional Notes
5.1. Risk Management

Bank recognizes the importance of Risk Management and has accordingly invested in processes, people and
a management structure. Overall nsk management function of the Bank 1s supervised by Risk Management
Committee and Internal Audit Committee represented by BOD members and Senior Executives. Risk
Management Committee reviews the asset quality at frequent mtervals and Intemal Audit Commuttee provides
assurance that the internal control systems of the Bank are in place. The human capital is also managed by Human
Resource Management and Compensation Committee represented by BOD members and Semior Executives.
There is Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO) represented by Senior Executives of the Bank
to monitor the interest rate nisk, hqudity nisk, exchange nsk, market nsk, etc. Authonty, responsibility and
accountability have been fixed to the executives of the Bank. Product policies and programs are duly approved
before any new product launches and are reviewed regularly.

5.1.1. Credit risk

Credit Risk is the nisk of negative effects on the financial results and the capital of the institution due to the
borrower ‘s default on 1is obligations to the Bank.

Bank has Credit Policy and Investment Policy in place. There is separate Credit Risk Management Depariment
independent from Credit Business Unit.

CRD consists of skilled manpower to analvse nisks in different credit functions separately.

Loans are originated at the lower level and evaluated based on credit policy of the Bank and respective loan
policy. Credit appraisal 1s done by nisk owner acting within nsk management policies and framework. Branches
reconumend credit facilities to higher approval level with the BOD being highest authority to approve credit
facihities that are of highest value of exposure.

Delegated authority, additional documentation and IT system dniven controls and laid down procedures are in
place to mitigate nsk further.

Inherent credit risks are addressed through better safety marpin, additional collateral backup, lower exposure
and deposit of borrower in bank.

Operations department measures and tracks status of eredit porttolio in order to detect any signs of detenioration
i1 finaneial health of borrower. Comprehensive management mformation reports are prepared regularly and
submitted to senior management. Review of credit portfolio in order to realise possible comrelations between
them and the environmental factors.

Continuous review process at branch level m order to identify any post disbursement problem credits and
immediate action 1s taken by recovery officers. if any identified. As last resort, legal recovery action is taken in
order to reduce negative impact.

5.1.2. Market Risk

Market Risk 1s discussed at ALCO and within respective division level on open position on daily basis. In depth
knowledge of the market and movement in varables are obtained in order to control limits for open position
and monthly reports prepared. The open position is assessed on daily basis and nisk exposure calculated for
allocation of required capital in line with Basel provisions. ALCO ensures jobs are in line with policies and
procedures and suggests necessary steps to address risk on iterest rate, exchange rate movement and equity
price changes. Possible financial impact due to change in market conditions are assessed periodically and
actions taken accordingly. The departments are well equipped with advance dealing platform and advanced
wformation technology.

Cherview of current interest rate environment and monitoring of the movement of key interest rate indices.
Periodic evaluation of net interest position and maturity gap analysis is prepared considering nterest rate
sensitive assets and habiliies. Interest rate risk indicators are periodically reviewed. The institution’s rate
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indices are compared 1n line with market average of industry expert’s rate mdices of similar mstruments with
similar charactenistics.
Interest rates are altered in line with key policy rates of the Central Bank and mnterest rate spread 1s mamtamned

according to the Central Bank's direction. Lending policy rates are adjusted according 1o changes in market
rates in order to mitigate sk of falling mterest rate margins.

5. 1.3. Operational risk:

Operational nsk occurs due to external as well as the intemal environment. First step 1s to clearly identify the
risk events. after which appropriate combination of qualitative or quantitative techniques are used to evaluate
the magmitude of the consequences due to the cccurrence of such events. Key risk indicators and audit findings
are mostly used to assess operational risk of the Bank.
The Internal Audit Depariment conducts audit reviews of the operational processes and reporis to the Board
level Audit Commuttee. The Bank then regularly monitors faults or operational failures and responds to them
with resolutions and enhancements to internal procedures.
The Bank implements sound internal control systems through instigating the Bank's internal control framework
in order to manage operational risk. The IT security aspects of the Bank are examined by the separate unit of
Risk Department in line with the IT Policy of the Bank. Moreover. the Bank's system 1s audited regularly and
safety and secunty standards are improved through suggestions received from the audit.
The operational nisk committee oversees any operation risk with help of adequate access to daily reports,
operaiional processes and recommendations to correct any faults in sysiems and procedures. Further, a separate
reporting line i1s maintained in order to preserve independency of check and balance reporting of daily functions
of the Bank.
Adequate focus is placed on staffs of the Bank in order to avoid mistakes due to insufficient knowledge or
practise. The staffs are required to attain the necessary skills through vanous programs such as onentation of
the bank's systems and processes on the job and putting them under direct supervision of experienced staffs
before being allowed to work independently. Their development i1s pushed further with conduction of skill
development and skill enhancement programs. seminars and workshops on a penodic basis.
Each transaction goes through a check and balance concept where one individual conducts the transaction and
the other checks the transaction in order to capture any abnormalities. The deviations are promptly addressed
in the lower level as well as centrally through the use of the integrated system.
For the effective management of operational risk. the bank has constituted an Operation Risk Management
Committee {ORMC) headed by Deputy Chief Executive Officer. The ORMC which supports RMC 15 responsible
for implementing the Operational Risk Management Policy and adopting the best practices. The key functions
of ORMC:

Establish clear lines of management responsibility, accountability and reporting in such a manner that they

are distinet to avoid contlict of mterest

Review all operational risk events and suggest process improvements and mitigants

Review tecent nisk events in other banks and elsewhere as available in public domamn and suggest key
control required from operational risk perspectives

3 1.4 Liguidity Risk:

Ligquidity risk indicators such as liquid asset ratio, maturity gap analysis. capital adequacy ratios and funding
concentration are used to assess liquidity position and are peniodically monitored by ALCO in order to ensure
the optimum gearing level of assets and liabilities.

However, treasury depariment monitors daily liquidity requirement and manages and conirols the overall
hgqudity position of the company.

Treasury front office manages overall iquidity of the Bank. It also ensures that the Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) 1s
maintained within NRB Directives. 1t also deals in treasury bills and bonds and manages the lending borrowing
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of currency (local/foreign) at local and international bank and financial mstitutions within the approved Limit.
These functions help in the analysis of matunity gap to determine the liqmdity position of the bank. As per
the results of gap analysis, the bank prepares future plan to manage the deficit or surplus liquidity as per the

requirement of funds. While raising short term funds, the treasury negotiates for favourable rates to reduce
interest costs, at the same tune encouraging longer tenor deposits rather than short term deposits.—

Also, in order to reduce liquidity risk to an acceptable level, the nstitution also maintains adequate unutilised
facihties as a safety cushion to honour future cash outow commitments.

Moreover, the bank regularly projects future cash flows in certain stress scenarios and thus determines the level
of liquid assets required. There is appropriate stress test done regularly for the management of liquidity risk.

5.2. Capital Management

Information presented hereunder is as per disclosure requirements of the Capital Adequacy Framework 1ssued by
NREB. Disclosures are m respect of the stand-alone capital adequacy of the Bank.

Qualitative Disclosures

The Bank has developed its own internal policy. procedures and structures to manage eredit. market and Liquidity
nisk i adverse sitmation and to make contingency plan accordingly. For the purpose, the Bank has developed
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) which acts as a guiding document for reporting the
ongomg assessment of the Bank’s nsks, how the Bank mtends to mitigate those nisks and how much current and
future capital is necessary having considered other mitigating factors.

Quantitative Disclosures
a. Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components

Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital) (CET1 +AT1) Amount in NPR

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1)
Paid up Equity Share Capital 8,033,236,401
Equity Share Premium 433,526
Proposed Bonus Equity Shares .
Statutory General Reserves 1,192,300,666
Retained Earnings 132,228,780
Un-audited current year cumulative profit/ (loss) -
Capital Redemption Reserve 321,428,571
Capital Adjustment Reserve
Dividend Egualization Reserves
Bargain Purchase Gain
Other Free Reserve
Less: Goodwill -
Less: Intangible Assets (70,534,031)
Less: Deferred Tax Asset

_':"'55’ Fictiious Assets
Less: Investment in Equity in licensed financial institutions
Less: Investment in Equity in institutions with financial interests (117,200,000
Less: Investment in Equity of institutions in excess of limits -
Less Investments arising out of underwriting commitments
Less: Reciprocal crossholdings .
Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized (142,993,505)
Less: Cash Flow Hedge
Less; Defined Benefit Pension Assets
Less: Unrecognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities
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Less: Other Deductions
ADIUSTMENT UNDER PILLAR 11

Less: Loans and Facilities extended to Related Parties and Restricted Lending (6.4 a 2)
Additional Tier 1 |AT1)

Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share Capital

Perpetual Debt Instruments

Stock Premium -
Tier 1 Capital [Core Capital) (CET1 +AT1) 9,348,900,404

b. Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components

Tier 2 Capital [ Supplementary Capital) Amount in NPR

Cumulative and/ or Redeemable Preference Share -
Subordinated Term Debt 200,000,000
Hybrid Capital Instruments -
stock Premium .
General Loan Loss Provision 540,257 552
Exchange Egualization Reserve 49,775,519
Investment Adjustment Reserve

Assets Revaluation Reserve -
Other Reserves -
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2} 790,033,071

c. Detailed Information about the Subordinated Term Debt with information on the outstanding amount,
maturity, amount raised during the year and amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds.

8.5% Citizens Bank Bond, 2077 Amount in NPR
Outstanding Amount 500,000,000
Maturity Date Poush 2077
Amount raised during the year
Amount eligible for Tier 2 Capital Fund (net of redemption reserve) 200,000,000
The Bank has created debenture redemption reserve. and appropriated NPRE 7143 Million each wear, ie

proportionately in the total duration of the Bond, starting from Poush 2070. The current balance of Redemption
Reserve stands at NPR 321 .43 Million.

Deduction from Capiial

The Bank has deducied the following items in caleulation of Tier I Capital:
NPR 7053 Million Intangible Assets.
NPR 117.20 Million invested m equity capital of subsidiary company.

NPR 142.99 Million for unutilized portion of land and bwlding for more than 2 vears from the date of
acguisition/purchase.

Total CGualifying Capital

Description Amount in NPR
Common Egquity Tier 1 Capital {CET 1) 9,348,900,404
Tier 1 Capital 9,348,900,404
Tier 2 Capital 790,033,071
Total Capital Fund (Tier 1 and Tier 2) 10,138,933,476
Risk Weighted Exposures 73,250,246,916
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Capital Adequacy Ratio

Description

Leverage Ratio

Common Egquity Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures ratio

Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures Ratio

Total Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures Ratio

Risk Weighted Exposures

g. Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

h.

Risk Weighted Exposures

Amount in NPR

Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk

67,250,355 430

Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk

3,313,014,293

_RHI::-k Weightgiixp;ngum fu_f Markgt Risk

127,359,168

Add: 2% of RWE as Supervisory Haircut

1,413,814, 578

Add: 4% of Operational Risk as Supervisory Haircut

1,145,703,447

Total Risk Weighted Exposures (after bank's adjustments of Pillar 1)

73,250,246,916

Risk weighted exposures under each 11 categories of Credii Risk

Risk Weighted Exposure

Amaount in NPR

Categories of Credit Risk

Claims On Government and Central Bank

Claims On Other Official Entities

Claims On Banks

1,254,269,918

Claims on Corporate And Securities Firms

28,828,505,001

Claims On Regulatory Retail Portfalio

g,183,792,868

Claims Secured By Residential Properties

1,981,192 573

Claims Secured By Commercial Real Estate

3,750,758,986

Past Due Claims

479,197,324

High Risk Claims

9,840,749,923

Other Assets

4,980,840,795

Off Balance Sheet Items

7,940,648,041

Total Credit Risk Weighted Exposures

67,250,355,430

Total Risk Weighted Exposure calculation table:

Risk Weighted Exposures

Amount in NPR

Credit Risk exposure

67,250,355,430

Operational Risk Expoasure

3,313,014,253

Market Risk Exposure

127,359,168

Adjustments under Pillar Il

Add: 2% of RWE as Supervisory Haircut

1,413,814 578

Add: 4% of Operational Risk as Supervisory Haircut

1,145,703,447

Total Risk Weighted Exposuras

73,250,246,916

Total Core Capital [CETL +AT1)

9,348,900,404

Total Capital Fund (Tier 1 and Tier 2)

10,138,933,476

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's
adjustments of Pillar Il)

12.76%
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Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar T}

Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments

of Pillar 1)

Amount of Non Performing Assets as per regulatory classification

Amount in NPR

Particulars Gross Amount

Provision

Met Amount

Rescheduled / Restructured

Sub Standard 56,122,763

13,520,864

42,601,899

Doubtful 28,891,191

14,258,096

14,633,096

Loss 775,520,486

774,403,934

1,125,552

Total 860,543,440

802,182,894

58,360,546

Ratio of Non Performing Assets as per regulatory classification

Particulars

Total NPLto Tn!:al Loans & Advances

Met NPL to Net Loans & Advances

.'sl'm ement of Non Performing Assets as per regulatory classification

Amount in NPR

Particulars Previous Year

Current Year

Change

Rescheduled / Restructured -

Sub Standard 48 898,672

56,122,763

14.77%

Daubtful 182,507,287

28,891,191

-84.17%

Loss 749,384,316

775,529,486

3.49%

Total B15,308,419

860,543,440

5.55%

. Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense

Amount in NPR

Particulars Previous Year

Current Year

Change

Loan written off 105,936,458

16,717,011

-84.22%

Interest Suspense written off (135,883,001)

137,837,027

-201.44%

Movements in Loan Loss Provision and Interest Suspense

Amount in NPR

Particulars Previous Year

Current Year

Change

Amount ]

Loan Loss Provision 1,356,605,254

1,445,921, 895

89,316,641 B.OT%

Interest Suspense 674,533,587

759,326,664

84,793,077 12.57%

Details of Additional Loan Loss Provision as per regulatory classification

Amount in NPR

Previous Year

Current Year

Additional
Provision in
Current Year

Change

_ Pass Loan
Watchlist

472,942,902
30,799,724

543,416,051
100,322,950

70,473,149 14.90%
69,523,226 225.73%

Rescheduled / Restructured

=
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Sub Standard 12,274,668 13,520,864 1,296,196
Doubtful 91,253,644 14,258,096 {76,995,548)
Loss 749,384,316 774,403,934 25,019,618
Additicnal

Total 1,356,605,254 1,445,921,895 89,316,641
p-  Segregation of Invesiments Porifolio

Particulars Amount in NPR
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 5,457, 642,301
Investment in equity measured at FVTOC) 159,216,001
Trading Assets 76,236,446
Total 5,693,094,748
q. Summary of the Bank's internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and future
activities, il applicable.

The current paid up capital of the Bank stands at NPR 8,033.236.401.

Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital insiruments specially in case of subordinated
term debts including hybrid capital instrumenis.

All the capital of the Banks are unconditional. The Bank has Subordinated Debt of 300,000 8 3% Citizens Bank
Bond, 2077, the main features of which are as under:

Mame 8.5% Citizens Bank Bond, 2077
Amount NPR 500,000,000

Interest Rate 8.5% per annum (before tax) payable guarterly

Type Unsecured and Redeemable at Maturity No call / convertible feature
Mumbers of Debentures 500,000 (Five Hundred Thousand Only)

Face Value MNPR 1,000

Maturity Period 7 Years

Priority to Debenture Holders At the time of liquidation, pricrity of payment to the debenture holders will be
after the depositors and secured creditors.

Listing Listed with Nepal Stock Exchange

The Bank has created debenture redempiion reserve, and appropriated NPE 7143 Million each vear, ie

proportionately in the total duration of the Bond, starting from Poush 2070. The curmrent balance of Redemption
Reserve stands at NPR 321 43 Million.

5.3. Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The fair values of the financial mstruments of the Group are done by referming to extemally quoted prices or
observable/ unobservable pricing mputs in accordance with the following hierarchy:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those denved from unadjusted gquoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical
or similar mstruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all sipnificant inputs
are observable

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable mputs of the mstruments. The mputs are not based on
observable marlet data.

This fair value may differ from the actual amount that may be received or paid on settlement, realization or matunty
of those financial instruments.
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Following table demonstrates the valuation hierarchy wise fair values of financial instruments of the Group:

Amount in NPR

Bark

Financial Assets

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Derivative Financial
Instruments

Forward Exchange 35.31!5.5:1:1

Contract

36,385,544

36,385,944 36,385,344

Other Trading Assets

Quoted Equities 76,136,446 76,236,446

142,662,000 142 662,000

Unguoted Equities

Investment Securities

Investment securities
measured at amortized
cost

Treasury Bills 2,054,787,363 2,054,787,353

2,054,787,363 2,054,787,363

Government Securities 3,400 854,930 3 407 854 939

3,402,854,939 3,402 854 933

Inwestment In equity
measured at FVTOC!

Cluoted Equities 141,000,000 141,000,000

141,000,000 141,000,000

Unguoted Equities 18,216,001 18,216,001

18,216,001 18,216,001

Total 217,236,446 36,385,944 5,475,858,303

5729,480,693 283,662,000 36,385,944 5,475,856,303

5,795,906,247

Financial Liabilities

Derivative Financial
Instruments

Total

Financial Assets and Liabilities not carried at Fair Value

There are financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value due to lack of ohservable pricing inputs
or external quoted price and their carrying amount best represents and approximates the fair value or the settlement

value.

Following table demonstrates the financial assets and liabilities of the Group not carried at fair value:

Amount in NPR

Financial Assets

Bank Group

Cash and Cash equivalents

5,046,237 ,676 5,148 467 404

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

3,680,192,203 3,690,192,293

Placement With Bank And Financial Institutions

1,989,878,358 1,989,878,358

Loans And Advances To B/Fls

1,420,646,157 1,420,646,197

Loans And Advances To Customers

55,601,766,580 55,598,967,114

Current Tax Assets

114,653,791 114,653,791

Investment In Subsidiaries

117,200,000 -

Investment In Associates

17,951,500 23,903,192

Investment Property

287,547,060 287,547,060

Property And Equipment

2,121,592,854 2,127,954,165

Goodwill And Intangible Assets

70,534,031 71,173,137

Deferrad Tax Azsets

Other Assets

1,502,271,961 1,486,416,313

Total

71,980,472,301 71,959,799,024

®
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Financial Liabilities

Bank

Group

Due To Banks And Financial Institutions

3,335,288,532

3,335,288,532

Due To Nepal Rastra Bank

695,041,370

695,041,370

Deposits From Customers

60,656,026,972

60, 605,815,636

Borrowing

Current Tax Liabilities

Provisions

5,306,626

5,526,126

Deferrad Tax Liabilities

17,677,498

15,192,307

Other Liabilities

1,447,977 647

1,554,811,5089

Debt Securities [ssued

498,722,911

498,722,911

Subordinated Liabilities

Total

66,696,041,556

66,710,498,390

5.4. Operating Segment Information
1. General Information
A, Factors that management used to identify the entity s reportable segments

The Bank has idennfied the reportable segment as the business activities from which 1t eams revenues and
mcurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relating to transactions with any of the Group’s other
components, whose operating results are reviewed by the manapement to make decision about resource
allocation to each segment and assess 1ts performance.

The Bank comprises the following major business segments on the nature of products and services of the Bank:

Banking.
Treasury,
Cards,

Remittance and
Branchless Bankmg

Segment results that have been reported mclude 1tems directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Facrtors that management used fo identify the eniity's reportable segments

L

Banking

This segment includes all existing branches. The major product and service of this segment is loans and
deposits. The segment generates its revenue from its interest on loan and major expense comprises the
interest expense.

. Treasury

This segment pnmarily mcludes the invesiments in securities, bonds. treasury hills and dealing in the
foreign currencies and gold, silvers, etc. The segment generates its revenue from the terest on bonds,
debentures, etc and the aain on foreipn exchange and gamn on the revaluanon of invesiments.

. Cards

This segment introduces new innovation on digital banking and transactional banking. Introduction of
credit card, debit card, e-wallet, e-banking, etc. are its major products and the segment generates 1ts revenue
from the registration fee, application charge. annual maintenance charge, commission from agents, etc.

. Remittance

This sepment collects remuttances from abroad through vanous agencies and transfers to the customers
after collecting the charges' commussion. Major source of income 1s commission received from the agents
for the collection and distribution to the customers,
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V. Branchless Banking

The segment provides services to the areas without bank branches through vanious projects and agents. The
source of income of this sepment is infernational’ national projects and commission from various agenis,
etc.

2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Amount in NPR "000

S.ML Particulars Banking Treasury Card Remittance BLB Total

()

Revenues from external customers 509,464 292 34,110 11,533 . 555,400

Expenszes to external customers {11,935) (6,615} (17,192) 148) (37,582}

(e}

intersegment revenues . E - . . -

Net Revenue 497,529 (6,322) 16,918 {48) 517,818

interest revenue 6,741,965 354,363 4,764 - - 7,101,093

if)

Interest expense (4,719,818)  [124,.886) - . - [4,844,703)

MNet Interest revenue(b) 2,022,147 229,478 4,764 - 2,256,389

Other income (149,372) 445,482 (45} 7,750 308,008

Depreciation and amortization {62,074) (130) (101) (262) (62,611)

Other expenses 1650,047) {7.228) (5,303} {7.616) (572,682)

Segment profit 1,658,184 661,280 16,233 (175) 2,336,922

Entity's interest in the profit or loss of
associates accounted for wsing equity
method

(m)

Other material non-cash item

{n}

impairment of assets 189,317) - - - (89,317)

(@)

Segment Assets 59,353,302 16,026,978 13,862 6,055 75,413,341

(p}

Segment Liabilities 61,977,204 4,352,640 24,202 305 66,353,276

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

a)

Basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments

The intersegment revenue has been distributed between segmenis on the basis of pre-determined sharing ratio
determined on the basis of resources used of the service providing segment and the segment to which the
product or service belongs to. Such revenues are included in core revenue of the segment as allocation of
revenue and not included in intersegment revenue. No any other notional intersegment pricing has been done.

Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments profits or losses and the
entity's profit or loss before income tax

Mot Applicable

Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments assets and the entity’s
assels.

Not Applicable

Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported
segments profit or loss and the effect, if any, and

Not Applicable
Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments

There are no asvmmetrical allocations to reportable segments. The incomes, expenses, assets and liabilines
that are not identifiable to particular sepment have not been allocated. The unallocated items comprise mainly
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corporate assets (primanly the Bank’s corporate building). head office expenses. share capital, general reserves
and tax assets and habilities and prepaid expenses and provision for expenses.

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Revenus Amount in NPR ‘000
Total revenues for reportabie segments 2,774,207
Other revenues
Elimination of intersegment revenues
Entity's Revenue

Profit or Loss Amount in NPR ‘000
Total profit or loss for reportable segments 2,346,922
Other profit or loss (89,317)
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Unallocated amounts (550,741)
Profit before Income Tax 1,706,865

Assets Amount in NPR 000
Total assets for reportable segments 75,413,341
Other assets -
Unallocated amounts 2,296,612
Entity's Assets 17,709,953

Liahilities Amount in NPR ‘000
Total liabilities for reportable segments 66,359,276
Other liahilities -
Unallocated lizbilities 336,765
Entity's Liabilities 66,696,042
5. Information about products and services

Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1(b) above:

5N, Particulars Amount in NPR ‘000
F_[aj Banking 2,370,305
_(b)  Treasury
(e} Card 21,637
() Remiltance 13,933
(2] BLB 7,703
Total 3,082,215
6. Information aboul geographical areas

The operations of the Bank could be sezmenied on the basis of geographical presence i each of the Provinces.
However, the Province wise results do not constitute major role in the decision making process of the management.

7. Information about major customers

No any single external customer revenue amounts to 10 percent or more of the Bank's revenue.
5.5. Related Party Disclosure

5.5.1. Related Party Disclosure of the Bank

The related parties of the Bank which meets the definition of related parties as defined in “NAS 16 Related Party
Disclosures™ are as follows:
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Key Management Personnel (KMP)
The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or mdirectly including any director. The key management of the
Bank includes members of its Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and other higher level employee of

the Bank. The name of the key management personnel who were holding vanous positions in the office during
the year are as follows:

Name of the Key Management Personnel  Post
Mr. Sharkar Prasad Sharma BOD Chairman

Mr. Bal Krishna Prasai Director

Mr. Prakash Chandra Mainali Director

Mr. Pabitra Kumar Karki Director

Mr. Bijaya Dhoj Karki Director

D, Eh;r-'l_da Karki Director

M. Avanindra Kumar Shrestha Director

Mr. Chandra Tandon Former Director

Mir. Rajan Singh Bhandari Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Ganesh Raj Pokhare| Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Bodh Raj Devkota Assistant Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Ramdhan Shrestha Assistant Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Samir Prasad Dahal Chief Executive Officer- CBIL Capital Ltd, (on deputation from the Bank
in the subsidiary company)

Mr. Rajendra Lal Shrestha Chief Risk and Recovery Officer
Mr. Paras Kumar Kafle Chief Operating Officer
Ms. Umang Sharma Chief Administrative Officer
Mr. Sumit Babu Khatri Chief Credit Officer
Mr. Sanjeeb Kumar Shrestha Chief IT Officer
mr. Pramesh Raj Kayastha Chief Finance Officer
Subsidiary Company
Name and percentage of shareholding in Subsidiary Company 1s as below:
5. Particulars Shareholding %
a, CBIL Capital Lid. 68.94 %
Associate Companies
5.M. Particulars Shareholding %
a.  MNepal Electronic Payment Systems Ltd. 8.57%
b.  Mepal Clearing House Ltd. 1.64%

Fund Sponsor

5.N. Particulars Shareholding %
. Citizens Mutual Fund- 1 18.29%

i. Compensation to Key Management Personnel

The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeting allowances. Salary and allowances are provided to
Chief Executive Officer and other member of Key Management Personnel (KMP). Salary and allowances paid to
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the Chief Executive Officer 1s based on the contract entered by the Bank with him, whereas compensation paid
to other member of KMP are govemed by Emplovees Byelaws and decisions made by management from time to
time in this regard. In addition to salaries and allowances, non-cash benefits like vehicle facility, subsidized rate
employees loan, termination benefits are also provided to KMP.

The details relating to compensation paid and expenses incurred to key management personnel (directors only) are
as follows!

Particulars Current Year (NPR)
Meesting Fees 2,896,000
Other Board Facility 863,000
Other Expenses 1.964.839
Total 5,723,839

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel other than directors are as follows:

Particulars Current Year (NPR)
Short term employee benefits 54,369,144 ]
Post employment benefits® 4,298,084
Other long term benefits*™* 1,437,044
Total 60,104,271

*  Post employment benefits includes Provident Fund and Gratuity. Provident Fund is deposited in an independent institution and Gramiry
is provided for as per aciuarial valnation against which investiment is made in an independenr planned asser.

#%  Other long term employment benefit includes Home Leave and Sick Leave encashment over and above the acoumulation limit set as per
Emploves Byelaws of the Bank:

#E% KMP also get accidental and medical insurance, vehicle, fuel, linch and mobile facilities as per Employee Byelaws of the Bank
ii. Transaction with Subsidiary

The Bank has made strategic investment to broaden the scope of service and source of income by mvesting in share
capital of CBIL Capital Ltd., which 1s the Subsidiary company of the Bank. The Bank holds 68.94% controlling
interest in the Subsidiary. Similarly, the Bank has deputed the managerial level staff as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Subsidiary and Deputy CEQ of the Bank 1s the Chairman of CBIL Capital. The ACEOs of the Bank are
directors of the Subsidiary.
The Subsidiary is engaged in Merchant Banking Services.
1. The Bank has entered into a Management Service Agreement (MSA) with Subsidiary for providing management
services. Provisions laid m MSA are n line with arm's length principle.
An agreement has been made between the Bank and the Subsidiary Company to provide following facilities to
Subsidiary Company by the Bank for a monthly fee of Rs. 600.000:
a) Bank has deputed its Semior Manager as CEQ to 1its Subsidiary providing salary, allowance and other
eligible facilities as per the Bank's Employee Bye-laws.
b) The Bank provides technical assistance required for Computer hardware, software and network maintenance.

¢) Internal audit team of the Bank will handle all audit work of its subsidiary and will submit quarterly report
to its Audit Committee.

d) Bank has also agreed to provide legal consultancy and vehicle facility to the Subsidiary company.

Similarly, Bank has rented 1ts building located in Dillibazaar, Kathmandu to the Subsidiary company with the
agreement to pay monthly rent of NPR 110,000, which will be mcreased by 10% in every 2 years.

All receipt and pavment transactions entered mto by the Bank with Subsidiary were made net of TDS. TDS has
been duly deposited at Tax Office.

gt aifds gfdzm soey &y L3



--“"_""""-H/ﬂant

Cirtizens | ...

YOURPARTMER FORPROGRESS
CBIL Capital Ltd holds a deposit account with the Bank which has a balance of NRs. 90.211.337 as on 32
Ashadh, 2075,

The overall transactions with the Subsidhary included in financial statements of the Bank has been tabulated
below:

Particulars NPR

Statement of Profit or Loss

Rental Income 1,353,000
Management Fee Income 7,200,000
Server & Database Rental Income 2,000,000
Dividend Income 3,182,500
Interest Income 425,448
Total Income 14,160,957
Interest Paid to Subsidiary 5,844,992
RTS fee to Subsidiary 725,000
Total Expenses 40,879,130
Statement of Financial Position

Deposit of Subsidiary in Current Deposit 5,000
Deposit of Subsidiary in Call Deposit 5,206,337
Fixed Deposit 85,000,000
Loan Against Fixed Deposit 2,790 481
Dividend payable held with Subsidiary 37,244,724

. Transaciion with Associates

Investments in Associates have been reported in the statement of financial position of the group and are imitially
recognized at cost and subsequently accounted for using the equity method. Stmilarly. the Bank has accounted for

investments in associates at cost in separate financial statements,

"The Bank has significant wnfluence, but not control. over the financial and operating policies of the company even if
the Manager of the Bank is the representative director on behalf of the Bank in the company.
Nepal Electronic Payment Systems Lid. (NEPS)

NEPS 1s formulated as a consortivm of seven national level commercial Banks, with aim to pool the resources of
these Banks together and establish a common platform, which will be more secure, reliable and able 1o encompass
the rapid growth of new technologies i electronic payments.

Executive member Mr. Sanjeeb Kumar Shrestha i1s the Board member in NEPS. The Bank holds investment of Rs.
15,000,000 in share capital of NEPS which comes to 8.537 %0 of the total capital of WEPS.

Agreement has been entered by the Bank with NEPS for availing services related to debit cards and credit cards for
which Bank makes the payment at an anm's length price.

The aggregate amounts of the transactions dunng the vear from the relevant related party at the year end are
summarized below:

Particulars NPR
Payments made towards transaction fees 7,623,911

The mvestment in NEPS has been accounted for at cost in separate financial statement of the Bank and as per equity
method in consolidated financials.
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The following table summanzes the financial information of NEPS i its own financial statements:

Percentage of Ownership- 8.57% MNPR
Mon- Current Assets 106,687,419
Current Assets 89,127,060
Mon- Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities 32,353,278.87
Met Assets 163,461,197
Group's share of net assets 14,010,960
Elimination of unrealized profit on downstream sales (133,555)
Carrying amount of interest in associates 2,968,459
Revenue 109,088,935
Profit from Continuing Operations 20,872, 738.27
Other Comprehensive Income (277,332.75)
Total Comprehensive Income 20,595,405.52
Elimination of unrealized profit on downstream sales (133,555)
Group's share of Total Comprehensive Income 1,777,644
Nepal Clearing House Litd. (NCHL)
Nepal Clearing House Ltd (NCHL) 1s a public Ltd. company established on 23rd December 2008 (9th Mangsir
2065) under the leadership and guidance of Nepal Rastra Bank (The Central Bank of Nepal). It has the equity

participation from Nepal Rastra Bank. commercial Banks, development Banks. finance companies and Smart
Choice Technologies (SCT), a pnivate card switch operator.

NCHL has the strategic objectives to establish multiple payments, clearing and settlement systems in Nepal with long
term objective to establish a national payments gateway to facilitate electronic payments and financial transactions
within the country. Electronic Cheque Clearing (NCHL-ECC) and Inter Bank Payment System (NCHL-IPS) are the
national payment systems that are currently in operation.

Executive member Ms. Umang Sharma 15 the Board member of WCHL. The Bank holds investment of Bs. 2 951 500
in share capital of NCHL which comes to 1.64 % of the total capital of NCHL.

Agreement has been entered by the Bank with NCHL for availing services related to Electronic Cheque Clearing
(ECC) and Inter- bank Payment System (IPS) for which Bank makes the pavment at an arm's length price. The

aggregate amounts of expenses ansing from the transactions during the year from the relevant related parties at the
vear end are summarized below:

Particulars NPR
Payments made towards transaction fees 6,234 887
Dividend Received net of tax 531,270

The investment in NCHL has been accounted for at cost in separate financial staiement of the Bank and as per equity
method in consolidated financials.

The following table summarizes the financial information of NCHL in its own financial statements;

Percentage of Ownership- 1.64% NPR
MNon- Current Assets 163,748,303
Current Assets 3TTAT79.177
Man- Corrent Liabilities -
Current Liabilities 69,439,201
Net Assets
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Group's share of net assets 0,283,221
Elimination of unrealized profit an downstream sales (68,986)
Carrying amount of interest in associates

Revenue 361,777,334
Profit from Continuing Operations 181,608,709
Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income 181,608,709
Elimination of unrealized profit on downstream sales (68,986)
Group's share of Total Comprehensive Income 3,572,097

iv. Transaction with Citizens Mutnal Fund- 1

The Bank is the sharcholder holding substantial interest and the sponsor of the Citizens Mutual Fund- 1, under the
Citizens Mutual Fund (the Fund), registered with Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON), under the Mutual Fund
Regulation 2067, as a close ended, equity onented fund.

The Scheme started its operation on 20™ Falgun, 2074 with the matunty period of 7 years (Le. up to 19" Falgun,
2081). It was listed in Nepal Stock Exchange on 3™ Baisakh. 2075.

The Bank has invested NPR 150,000,000 in Citizens Mutual Fund- I, which has been marked to market and disclosed
in Investment measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income.

The Scheme has Bank Balance of NPR 9,808,176 as on Balance Sheet date with the Bank and the total mterest
earned from the Bank for fiscal yvear 2074/75 is NPR 29,142 417. Further. amount of NPR 925 is receivable from
the Bank towards advance tax on Call deposit deducted.

The following table summarizes the financial information of Citizens Mutual Fund- I its own financial statements:

Particulars NPR

Mon Current Assets -
Current Assets 844,919,825
Mon Current Liabilities -
Current Liabilities 7,199,300
Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders 837,720,426
Revenue 28,072,559
Profit from Continuing Operations 17,720,426

Other Comprehensive Income -
Total Comprehensive Income 17,720,426
5.5.2 Related Party Disclosure of the Subsidiary
i. Key Management Personnel (KMF)
The name of the key management personnel who were holding various positions in the office during the vear are as
follows:
Mame of the Key Management Personnel Post

Mr. Ganesh Raj Pokharel Chairman

Mr. Bodh Raj Devkota Board Member

Mr. Ramdhan Shrestha Board Member

Mr. Vinay Kumar Sharma Board Member (Independent Director)

Mr. Bhola Prasad Pandey Board Member (Independent Director)

CA Samir Prasad Dahal Chief Executive Officer

2R gl anfid afrdE vosw @y



e ~—_ | Bank

- - ¥ - a N,
Citizens'| ...

YOURPARTHNER FORPRUOGREES

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel (directors only) are as follows:

Particulars Current Year (NPR)
Meeting Fees 410,500
Total 410,500
The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel other than directors are as follows:

Chief Executive Officer of CBIL Capital Ltd. has been receiving monthly salary from the Bank (Parent company).
CBIL Capital Ltd has made contract with CEO that he will be entitled with incentive from the company based on
profit during the vear as decided by Board of Directors. Since. the company has reported loss during the fiscal year
2074/75, no incentive has been provided during the year.

ii. Parent Company
During the fiscal year. following receipts and payments were made to/ from the Parent Company Citizens Bank
International Ltd.:

Particulars Total Amount NPR
Office Rental Expenses 1,353,000
Technical Fee Paid 7,200,000
'_SEWET & Database Rental Expenses Z,UGD,DDE_IT
Dividend payment for FY 2073,/74 3,447,000
Interest on Loan against FOR 425,448
Total Expenses 14,425,448
Interest Recelved on Deposits 6,844,992
Share Registrar Fees Received 725,000
Total Income 6,569,992
Outstanding balance of transaction done on behalf of the Parent company Citizens Bank International Ltd:

Citizens Bank International Ltd Total Amount NPR.
Dividend Payable to Shareholders 37,235,750
RTS Sharing payabla 5,806
Total 37,241,556

5.6 Operational Lease Expenses
The details of Actual Lease Liability and Future Minimum Lease Payments of the Bank are tabulated below:

Actual Lease Liability 2074/75 (NPR)
Less than one year 42,912,121
Betweean ane to five years 160,681,621
Maore than five years 116,419,556
Total 320,013,298

Future minimum lease payments 2074/75 (NPR)
Less than one year 45,890,927
Between ane to five years 167,182,483
Mare than five years 106,939,888
Total 320,013,298
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The details of Actual Lease Liability and Future Minimum Lease Payments of the subsidiary are tabulated below:

Actual Lease Liability

2074/75 (NPR)

Less than one year

1,452,000

Between one to five years

6,479,550

More than five years

5,182,914

Total

13,114,464

Future Minimum Lease Payments

2074/75 (NPR)

Less than one year

1,619,227

Between one to five years

6,476,908

Maore than five years

5,018,329

Total

13,114,464

5.7 Detail of Loans and Advances

Particulars

Ta Customers

To BFls

Loans and Advances

56,520,000,553

1,434,996,159

Interest Receivables on Loans and Advances

200,838,477

-

Staff Loans and Advances

303,200,446

Interest Receivables on Staff Loans and Advances

258,038

Total Loans and Advances [a]

57,033,338,515

1,434,996,155

Impairment Provision charge
| Tnta1_!.mpa|rrnen_'g“as per HAS 39

Individual Impairment | Epenﬁt P'rnwsmn‘r

Collective Impairment (General Loan Loss Provision)

351,185,458
173,172,207
178,013,250
1,431,571,935
529,066,089
902,505,845
1,431,571,935
55,601,766,580

ii. Impairment as per norms of NRB in loan loss provision 14,349,962

14,349,962

Callective Impairmeant

Individual Impairment
Impairment charge for the year, higher of i. and ii. [b]
Met Loans and Advances [a-b]

Impairment calculation as per NAS 39

The Bank has considered evidence of impairment for loans and advances measured at amortized cost at both specific
asset and collective level. The Bank first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists
for financial assets that are individually significant and that are not individually significant and that are found not
impaired individually are assessed collectively.

The Bank has covered 36.98% of total loans and advances to customers and BFIs (in terms of principal outstanding)
for individual impaimment assessment. The Bank believes that coverage to this extent provides adequate assurance
on the reliability of impairment assessment of gross loans and advances.

14,349,962
1,420,646,197

The Bank has then grouped loans and advances made to customers into different portfolios based on the general
product type so as to achieve similanty in credit risk and repayvment characteristics among loan accounts grouped
within a given portfolio for collective assessment of impairment. The groupings done are Home Loans. Short Term
Loans, Long Term Loans, Personal Loans and Vehicle Loans.

The Bank has considered overdue movement trend of past 3 years and current year data and loss given default rate
from the data since mception of the Bank for deriving loss rate in collective impairment of loans and advances.
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Impairment as per norms of NRB in loan loss provision

The Bank has provided for impairment provision as per norms of NRB i loan loss provision as given in NRB
Directive ne. 2 on the basis of overdue period of principal and interesi. Additional criteria include personal guarantee
loans, security shortfalls, blacklisting of borrowers, rescheduled loans, etc.

5.8 Staff Loans and Advances and Employee Benefits included in Loans and Advances to Customers of the

Bank

Presented in financial statements under loans and advances to customers are staff loans and advances extended in
line with the Employee Byelaws of the Bank. Eligibility criteria for availing staff loans are directly linked to the
penod of service under permanent pavroll of the Bank, as per the Employee Byelaws of the Bank.

The carrying amount as at the balance sheet date 1s as under:

Amount in NFR
Particulars 2074/75 2073/74
Staff Vehicle Loan 61,745,843 48,896,304
Staff Home Loan 174,026,643 126,719,934
Employee Advances 64,895,380 50,005,421
Credit Card Receivable 2,532,580 1,631,933
Total 303,200,446 227,253,593

5.9 Liability For Long-Service Leave

The detail of hability for long- service leave recognized in Other Liabilities in Statement of Financial Position is as

follows:
Amount in NPR
Grou Bank
Particulars L
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Present Value OF Unfunded Obligations 7,181,863 - 7,181,863
Present Value Of Funded Obligations 74,511,433 36,624,279 74,511,433 36,624,279
Total Present Value Of Obligations 21,693,296 36,624,279 81,693,296 36,624,279
Fair Value OF Plan Assets 74,511,433 36,624,279 74,511,433 36,624,279
Present Value OF Net Obligations 7,181,853 - 7,181 853
Recognized Liability For Defined Benefit Obligations 81,693,296 36,624,279 B1,603.296 36,624,279
Plan Assets
Group Bank
Plan assets comprise
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Equity Securities
Government Bands
Bank Deposit
Other 74,511,433 36,624,279 74,511,433 36,624,279
Total 74,511,433 36,624,279 74,511,433 35,624,279
Movement in the Preseni Value of Defined Benefit Obligations
Group Bank
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defined Benefit Obligations At Shrawan 1 36,624,279 49,999,942 36,624,279 49,599,342
Actuarial Losses 47,814,798 (24,281,098) 47 814,798 {24,281,098)
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Group Bank

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Benmefits Paid By The Plan

(17,072,023)

(14,345,978)

117,072,023

{14,345,978)

Current Service Costs And Interast

14,326,242

25,255,413

14,326,242

25,255,413

Defined Benefit Obligations At Ashadh End

81,693,296

36,624,279

81,693,296

36,624,279

Movement in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Fair Value Of Plan Assets At Shrawan 1

36,624,280

36,624,280

Contributions Paid Into The Plan

54,935,912

36,624,279

54,935 912

36,624,279

Benefits Paid During The Year

(17,072,023

(17,072,023

Actuarial (Losses) Gains

Expected Return On Plan Assets

23264

23264

Fair Value Of Plan Assets At Ashadh End

74,511,433

36,624,279

74,511,433

Amount Recognized in Profit or Loss

Particulars

Group

Bank

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Service Costs

12,079,181

21,266,376

‘12,079,181

71,266,376

interest On Obligation

2,247,061

3,989,037

2,247,061

3,989,037

Actuarial (Gain)/ Losses

52,236,032

52,236,032

Expected Return On Plan Assets

(4,444,498

{4,444,458)

Total

62,117,776

25,255,413

62,117,776

25,255,413

The long service leave expenses of NPR 212,154 have been capitalized to Work In Progress on account of core
banking software customization and development.

5.10 Taxation

Status of Tax Assessment

In the current fiscal vear, Large Taxpayers Office (LTO) has completed the tax assessment of the Bank of FY
3070/71 (2013-14) and former Nepal Housing & Merchant Finance Lid. (NHMFL) of EY 2070/71 (2013-14),
with additional Tax demand of NPR 11,562 467.65 and NPR 528,836.23 respectively. All demand dues of former
NHMFL and TDS and VAT demand of the Bank has been settled during FY 2074/75. However, the Bank has
applied for the adnunistrative review for Income Tax demand for NPR 10.103 million.

Further, the Bank has filed for the admmmistrative review for the Bank for FY 206869 (201 1-12) and 2069/70 (201 2-
13), with additional Tax demand of WPR 8 346,517 and NPR 12 396 861 respectively. The Bank has also filed for
appeal in Revenue Tnbunal against tax assessment of FY 2067/68 (2010-11), with additional income tax demand of
NPR 2 885,729 Sumilarly, tax assessment of acquired institutions. People's Finance Lid. of FY 2067/68 (2010-11)
and Nepal Housing and Merchant Finance Ltd. of FY 2068/69 (2011-12) are under Administrative Review with
additional tax demand of NPR 21.002.255 and NPR 3,446,694 respectively.

Simmlarly, in case of FY 2063/64 (2006-07) and 2064/65 (2007-08), the Bank has filed for petition with Supreme
Court, which 15 yet to be decided. The disputed tax amonnt 1s NPR 5,376 087 of FY 2063/64 (2006-07) and 206465
(2007-08).

The Bank has disclosed the disputed tax amount of NPR 63,557,281 as contingent halhty.

The self assessment returns filed by the Bank for FY 2071/72 (2014-15) to 2073/74 (2016-17), has not vet been
opened for reassessment by the LTO.
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Current Year Tax

Current year tax liability has been recognized on net profit at the rate of 30% after required adjustment to arrive at
taxable profit.

Reconcihiation between current year tax hability and current tax based on net profit of the book has been given in
Note 4.41.1.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is computed at 30% of the temporary differences between accounting base and tax base. Deferred tax
assets/ liabilities and the calculation of deferred taxes is given in Note 4.15 of Statement of Financial Position.

5.11. Statutory Reserves and Funds

The reserves of the Bank include statutory reserves and funds set aside for specific purpose as per Banks and
Financial Institutions Act, 2073 and NRB Directives. The various reserves and funds are as below:

i. Greneral Reserve

General Reserve 1s created as per Section 44 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073 equivalent to 20%
of the net profit eamed during the year until the reserve is twice the paid up share capital of the Bank, after which.
10% of the net profit eamed during the year shall be set aside as General Reserve, Duning the year, the Bank has
transferred NPR 246,820,779 to General Reserve from Retained Earnings.

Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra Bank.
it. Exchange Fluctuation Reserve Fund

Exchange Fluctuation Reserve is the reserve created as per Section 45 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act,
2073, equivalent to 25% of the foreign exchange gain realized on the transiation of foreign currency to the reporting
currency during the vear, other than Indian Rupees. During the year. the Bank has transferred NPR 16.719.984 1o
General Reserve from Retained Earnings.

Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra Bank. other
than to set off revaluation loss incurred, 1t any during the year.

fii. Investment Adfusiment Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve has been created as per the regulatory requirement of NRB Directive no 8. Duning
the year, NPR 49,924,000 has been transfetred from Retained Earnings to Investment Adjustment Reserve.

The detail of investment adjustment reserve is as follows:

Investment Amount Investment Adjustment

il (NPR) Reserve (NPR)
Mepal Electronic Payment System Led. 15,000,000 15,000,000
Prabhu Capital Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
CBIL Capital Ltd 117,200,000 117,200,000
Total 135,200,000 135,200,000

iv. Bend Redemption Reserve
The Bank has 1ssued Subordinated Debt of 500,000 8 5% Citizens Bank Bond, 2077 of NPR. 500,000,000 as per
NRB approval dated 2070/09/01. The Bank has set aside fund of NPR 321,428,571 to Capital Redemption Reserve

on time proportion basis by transferring additional NPR 121 428,571 to Capital Redemption Reserve in the FY
2074/75.

v. Employees Training Cost and Employees Capacity Development Fund

Emplovees training cost of NPR 15,493,317 has been incurred during the year which is above the 3% of the employee
cost of the previous vear 2074/75 as per NEB Directive No. 06/2074. Hence, employees capacity development [fund
has not been created during the vear.
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vi. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Fund
During the year, the Bank has expensed NPR 12,126,888 on CSR activities. Hence, the sum of NPR 10,816,615 has
been transferred from CSR fund created in previous year to retained earnings in the current year.

Similarly, additional CSR Fund of NPR 12,213,666 has been created as per NRB Directive No. 06/2074. The fund
50 created shall be used for CSR activities of the Bank in the next fiscal year as per Corporate Social Responsibility
Manual of the Bank.

The total movement of Bond Redemption Reserve, Corporate Social Responsibility Fund, Investment Adjustment

Reserve and Employee Training Cost and Emplovees Capacity Development Fund reflected in totality in Statement
of Changes in Equity under Other Reserve are as follows:

Other Reserve Amount in NPR
Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2074 302,940,278
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Actuarial gains/{losses) an defined benefit plans |2,B65,086)
Transfer to Reservi
Corporate Social Responsibility 12,341,039
Bond Redemption Reserve 121,428,571
Transfer from Reserve
Corporate Social Responsibiity (10,816,615)
fmvestment Adjustment Reserve 459,924,000
_Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2075 472,952,187
i Regulatory Reserve
The regulatory reserve has been created of NPR 795,430,349 in the current year as per NRB Directive 4 (3)(ka). The
detail of regulatory reserve created in the current year is given in the Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss.

The Bank has proposed to distribute bonus share equivalent to NPR 291 445 773 out of regulatory reserve created
on account of Gain on Bargain Purchase booked from business combination of Premuer Finance Ltd..

The detail of movement of Reserves of the Bank is summarized as below:

Transferfrom  Transferto  Other

Movement in Reserves of the Bank ﬁ::: Retained Retained Reserve E::m
Earnings Earnings  Mowvement i

Statutory General Reserve 045,470,886 246,820,779 1,192 300,666
"Em:hange Equalization Reserve 33,065,535 16,719,984 49,775,519
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 10,816,615 12,341,039 (10,816,615) 12,341,039
Capital Redemption Reserve 200,000,000 121,428,571 321,42R.571
Regulatory Reserve - ?5}5,43}'.],_3._49_ ?951430,34_
Investment Adjustrment Reserve 85,276,000 Té?z?athf} hhhhhhhh
Capital Reserve -

Assets Revaluation Reserve 343,854,012 343,854,012
Fair Value Reserve . (&6,300,000) (B,200,000)
Dividend Equalization Reserve - -
Actuarial Gain 5,847,663 (2,865,086) 3,082,577
Special Reserve . -
Other Reserve - -

Total 1,625329,711 1,125,464,723 (13,681,701) (6,300,000) 2,730,812,733
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5.12 Share Premium
Duning the year, the Bank has not issued any shares at premium,

Similarly. the cumulative share premium of NPR 532 361 307 has been transferred to share capital on account of
issuance of bonus shares to the shareholders of the Bank on aceount of bonus share declared of previous year.

5.13 Proposed Bonus Share

The Board of Directors of the Bank has proposed bonus share of 3.628 percent of paid up capital of the Bank subject
to approval from Nepal Rastra Bank and Annual General Meeting of the sharcholders of the Bank.

5.14 Proposed Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Bank has proposed Cash Dividend of 1.635 percent on paid up share capital of the
Bank subject to approval from Nepal Rastra Bank and Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Bank.

Since, the CBIL Capital Ltd. has incurred loss during the year, no dividend has been proposed.
5.15 Provision for Bonus to Employees

Provision for staff bonus has been made as per Bonus Act 2030, caleulated at 10% of net profit before bonus. For
the FY 2074/75, the Bank has made provision of NPR. 189,651,677 towards Staff Bonus,

5.16 Provision for Employees Housing

As per the terms of service of the staft provision for providing housing loans to eligible staft. a separate housing fund
has not been created as required by Labor Act, 2074.

5.17 Non- Deliverable Forward (NDF) Contract

Liablities on account of denvative contracts entered into by the Bank are reported under Contingent Liabilities
under sub- heading Cutstanding Liabilities for Forward Exchange Contract. These include notional principal on
outstanding forward rate agreements, The Forward Exchange Contract 1s marked to market and resulting difference
15 recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

The unsettled proprietary NDFE contract of NPR 27.20 million has been marked to market at exchange rate of
INR/USD = 68.5877/1 as on reporting date.

5.18. Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share

Eamings per share, also called net income per share, is a market prospect ratio that measures the amount of net
income! loss eamed per share of stock outstanding. In other words, this 1s the amount of money each share of stock
would recerve 1f all of the profits were distnbuted to the outstanding shares at the end of the vear. It 1s caleulated by
dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period.

The earnings atiributable to the ordinary equity holders consisis of the earmings of the Bank afier deduction of all
expenses, tax expense and preference dividends. differences ansing on the settlement of preference shares, and other
similar effects of preference shares classified as equity.

The calculation of basic earnings per share of the Bank has been based on the profit’ loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding as tabulated below:

Particulars 2074/75 2073/74
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders NPR 1,234,103,857 1,634,917,774
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 80,307,348 80,291,601
Basic Earnings Per Share NPR 15.37 20.36

Weighted average number of ordinary shares calculation
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FY 2074/75

Mos. of Shares

Shares
Outstanding

Portion of the
year

Weighted
Average Sharas

Opening Balance

69,216,897

69,216,897

1.0000 69,216,897

Bonus Share of FY 2073/74

11,074,704

80,291,601

1.0000 11,074,704

Fractional Shares (Bonus Portion)

40,764

80,332,364

0.3863 15,747

Total

80,332,364

80,307,348

FY 2073/74

Mos. of Shares

Shares
Outstanding

Portion of the
year

Weighted
Average Shares

Reported Nos of shares

69,216,897

69,216,897

1.00 63,216,897

Restated Nos of shares adjusted for issue of
bonus share

11,074,704

80,291,601

1.00 80,291,601

The calculation of basic earmings per share of the Subsidiary has been based on the profit’ loss attnbutable to
ordinary shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding as tabulated below:

Particulars

2074/75

2073/74

Profit attributable to ardinary shareholders NPR

128,278,868)

3,979,337

‘Weighted average number of ordinary shares

1,354,511

1,000,000

Basic Earnings Per Share NPR

(20.88)

3.98

Weighted average number of ordinary shares calenlation

FY 2074/75

Mos. of Shares

Shares
Outstanding

Partion of the
year

Weighted
Average Shares

Opening Balance

1,000,000

1,000,000

1.0000 1,000,000

Right Share of FY 2074/75

554,214

1,554,214

0.56 309,752

Right Share of FY 2074/75

45,786

1,600,000

0.53 24,210

Additional Investment

100,000

1,700,000

0.21 20,548

1,700,000

1,354,511

FY 2073/74

Mos. of Shares

Shares
Outstanding

‘Portion of the
year

Weighted
Average Shares

Reported Nos of sharas

1,000,000

1,000,000

1.00 1,000,000

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Diluted shares are the shares that would be outstanding if all possible sources of conversion, such as convertible
bonds and stock options, were exercised. Specific financial figures i terms of fully diluted shares outstanding are
reported to allow mnvestors to properly assess the Bank's financial situation.

There are no dilutive shares durimg the yvear of the Bank and the Subsidiary.

5.19. Events after reporiing period

There are no material events after Balance Sheet date affecting financial status of the Group as on Ashadh end, 2075,

5.20. Interim Financial Statements

The Interim Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared and published on quarterly basis, in accordance
with NRB Directives no. 4 in compliance of statutory and legal requirement within the time frame prescribed.
except for fourth quarterly interim financial statements, that has been prepared as per NFRS and previous NRB
Directive no 4.
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5.21 Age-wise particulars of reconciliation pending items (1 year, 1-3 years, and above 3 years) in agency

accounts of the Bank

i. Inter Branch Account
There 1s no unreconciled transaction i Inter branch Accounts of the Bank as on year end FY 2074/75.
ii. Nepal Rastra Bank

NPR in "000

Time Duration

Ledger Debit

Ledger Credit

1 month and below

455,502.01

1 -3 months

5,218.01

3 - 6 months

1,805.00

6 - 12 manths

13.92

1-2 years

Total

462,538.93

iii. Local Financial Institutions

NPR in "000

Time Duration

Ledger Debit

Statement
Credit

1 month and below

341.15

4,578.10

1 -3 months

6 - 12 months

1-2 years

Total

iv. Foreign Bank

NPR in "000

Time Duration

Ledger Debit

Ledger Cradit

Statement
Debit

Statement
Credit

1 month and below

179,176.37

109,713.84

£,860.41

1 -3 months

886.29

3 - b months

29.62

2.19

6 - 12 months

1,051.69

1.65

1-2 years

Total

181,143.91

109,713.84

6,873.25

£.22. Correction of Prior Period Error

5.22.1. Income Tax

During the current fiscal year, 1t has been discovered that the deferred tax of the Bank has been wrongly recogmized
in the previous fiscal year. As a consequence, income tax expenses have been understated and net profit and retained
eamings overstated. The errors have been comected by restating each of the affected financial statement line 1tems
of prior periods. The following table summarizes the impacts on the financial statements:
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Amount in NPR

FY 2073/74
Adjustments Restated

Particulars
As Reported

Statement of Profit or Loss

Income Tax

Deferred Tax Expenses

(231,108,602)

1 265,337,676)

Current Tax Expenses

(265,337.676)

(261,367,894)

Income Tax Expenses

(496,446,278)

(30,259,292)

(526,705,570)

Effect in Profit/ (Loss) for the year

{30,259,292)

1,634,917,774

Artributable to equity shareholders

(30,259,292

1,634,917,774

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Income tax relating to items of OCI

(1,195,651)

(1,195,651)

Total Comprehensive Income For The Fe_rfnd

1,509,316,109

{1,195,651)

e

Statement of Financial Position

Deferred Tax Assets

87,873,011

(87,873,011}

Defarred Tax Liahilities

85,192,158

85,192,158

Effect in

Baszic Earnings Per Share

20.36

Diluted Earnings Per Share

5.22.2. Fixed Assets and Deferred Tax

During the current fiscal year, it has been discovered that the fixed assets of the Bank have been wrongly recognized

in the previous fiscal vear. As a consequence, depreciation expenses have been overstated and retained eamings
and fixed assets have been understated. The errors have been corrected by restating each of the affected financial
statement line items of prior peniods. The following table summanzes the impacts on the financial statements:

Amount in NPR

FY 2073/74

Particulars

As Reported

Adjustments

Restated

Statement of Profit or Loss

Cepreciation & Amortization

(94,176,350

1,484,069

{92,692,281)

Deferred Tax

(440,972}

1262,563,544)

Effect in Profit/ (Loss) for the year

1,043,097

1,634,917,774

Attributable to Equity Shareholders

1,043,007

1,634,917,774

Statement of Financial Position

Property and Equipment

Cost

Building

342,799,707

22,154,803

364,954 510

Furniture and Fixtures

147,263,825

(13,149,617)

134,114,208

Office Equipment

228,004,408

(9,005,190}

218,999 218

Accumulated Depreciation

Building

27,096,174

494,690

27,590,864

Furniture and Fixtures

83,929,151

(1,174,423}

82,754,728

Office Equipment

131,120,441

(804,506)

130,315,935

9%
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Net Book Value

Building 374,878,585 337,363,646
Furniture and Fixtures 63,334,674 51,359,480
Office Equipment 06,883,967 88,683,283
Deferred Tax F 85,192,158
Effect in

Basic Earnings Per Share 20.36
Diluted Earnings Per Share -

5.22.3 Accounting for Gratuity and Leave as per actuarial valuation

During the current fiscal year. it has been discovered that the actuarial gain/ loss in long service leave have been
wrongly recognized m the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income nstead of Statement of Profit or Loss
the prior fiscal vears. As a consequence, Personnel Expenses have been overstated and consequently net profit
understated and Other Comprehensive Income overstated. Similarly, the actuarial reserve camied forward was also
inflated. The errors have now been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement.

Amount in NPR

FY 2073/74
As Reported Adjustments Restated

Particulars

Statemnent of Profit or Loss

Personngl Expenses (603,845, 240) 24,281,098 (579,564,141}
Income Tax E:pen:-'.e (1,195 EEI} LSEELT:]E,!'EPL
Effect in PraBt/ (Lass) for the year 1,634,917,774
Artributable to equity shareholders 1,634,917, 774

Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, net of tax

Actuarial gains/{losses) on defined 28,266,600 (25,476,749) 2,789,851
benefit plans

Statement of Financial Position
Eeserve‘{
Ar:tuarl:al Gain 42,125,076 (35,277 ,413) 6,847,663
Retained Earnings 35,277 413 783,369,942
Effect in

Basic Earnings Per Share 20.36
Diluted Earnings Per Share -

5.23. Changes in Accounting Policy

During the current fiscal vear, the Bank has used the carve-out and assessed and measured impairment loss on Loans
and Advances as the higher of amount denived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision
and amount determmed as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39,

Prior to this change in policy, the Bank had assessed at the end of each reporting period, whether there 1s any
objective evidence that a financial asset or proup of financial assets measured at amortized cost 1s mopaired. IF any
such evidence exists, the Bank applied paragraph 63 to determine the amount of any impaimment loss.

The impact of this voluntary use of carve-outs on each line items of the financial statements of previous year is
summarized in the table below:
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Amount in NPR

Particulars

FY 2073/74

As Reported

Adjustments

Restated

Statement of Profit or Loss

Impairment [Charge) Reversal for Loans
and Other Losses

(61,516,994)

158,482,211

96,965,217

Income Tax Expense

(496,446, 278)

(30,259,292)

(526,705,570)

Profit for the Period

1,634,917,774

Attributable to Equity Shareholders

1,634,917,774

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Loans and Advances to Customers

46,872,491,101

(850,989,665)

46,021,501,436

Deferred Tax Assets

87,873,011

(87,873,011}

Liahilities

Deferrad Tax Liabilites

85,192,158

85,192,158

Equity

Total Equity Attributable to Equity

11,024,604,203

(1,181,420,055)

9,843,184, 148

Holders
Effect in
Basic Earnings Per Share
Diluted Earnings Per Share
5.24. NFRS Carve-Outs Adjustments

During the current fiscal year, the Group has not applied the numbers of standards as prescribed in NFRS and used
the NFRS carve- out adjustments. As a consequence. the net profit and retained earnings have been impacted.

The impacts of each carve- out adjustment done and the affected financial statement line items have been summanzed
as follows wherever quantifiable or described otherwise:

5.24.1. NAS 39: Recognition and Measurement (Incurred Loss Model to measure the Impairment Loss on
Loans and Advances)

NAS 39 Para 58 requires an entity to assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective

evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost 15 impamed. If any such

evidence exists, the entity shall apply paragraph 63 to determine the amount of any impairment loss.

However, as per carve out o WNAS 39 Para 58, the Bank has assessed and measured impaimment loss on loan and

advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms preseribed by Wepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and

amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39.

The impacts of the application of carve- out i the current year financials is as under:

Amount in NPR

FY 2074/75
Without carve-out Impact

Particula
= As Reported

Statement of Profit or Loss

Impairment (Charge)/ Reversal for Loans
and Other Losses

Profit for the Period
Attributable to Equity Shareholders

(18,608,782 (89,316,642)

1,279,308,566
1,279,306,566

1,234,103,897
1,234,103,897

(45,202,669)
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Assets

Loans and Advances to Customers

56,667,843,611

[1,066,077,031)

55,601,766,580

Liabilities

“Deferred Tax Liabllities

346,098,430

(328,420,931)

17,677,499

Equity

Retained Earnings

(219,394,155)

352,222,936

132,228,780

Reserves

3,952,241,730

(1,104,228 ,997)

2,848,012,733

Effect in

Basic Earnings Per Share

15.93

15.37

Diluted Earnings Per Share

5.24.2. NAS 39: Recognition and Measurement (Impracticability to determine iransaction cost of all previous
yvears which is the part of effective interest rate)

NAS 39 Pama 9 requires using of the effective mterest rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
cammymg amount of the financial asset or financial hability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity
shall estimate cash flows considenng all contraciual terms of the financial nstrument (for example, prepayment,
call and sinular options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The caleulation includes all fees and points paid
or received between parties to the contract that are an mtegral part of the effective mterest rate, transaction costs,
and all other premiums or discounts. There 15 a presumption that the cash flows and the expected hife of a group
of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it 1s not possible to
estimate reliably the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instrumentis),
the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of
financial instruments).

However, as per carve out on NAS 39 Para 9, the Bank has not included the fees and points paid or recerved that
are immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably the effective interest rate and have recopnized them directly as
revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

The Bank shall adopt the NAS 39 Para 9 in its 2018-19 financial statements or later

5.24.3. NAS 39: Recognition and Measurement (Impracticability to determine interest income on amortired
cost)

As per NAS 39 Para AGY93, once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets have been written down as a

result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of mterest used to discount the

future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

However, as per carve out on NAS 39 AG 93, the Bank has applied the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is wrnitten off either partially or fully.

The Bank shall adopt the NAS 39 Para AG93 in 1is 201 8-19 financial statements or later.
5.25 Restatement/ reclassification of Previous Year Figures
5.25.1 Retained Earnings

Out of Bargain Purchase Gain equivalent to NPR 669,003 840 included in Retained Eamings in previous year. NPR
33,270,529 has been reclassified’ transferred to General Reserve and NPR 433,526 has been reclassified’ transferred
to Share Premium account. NPR 343,854,012 has been reclassified’ transferred to Asset Revaluation Reserve. The
sum transferred to General Reserve, Share Premium and Asset Bevaluation Reserves are on account of restatement
respective reserves of acquired institution,

The detail of restatement of retamed earmines in financial statements of previons year as a result of changes i
accounting policy. correction of error and reclassification are as follows:
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Amount in NPR

Particulars

Reported

Changes _
Accounting Policy Correction of  Reclassification
{Carve- out

in

adjustment)

Error

PR Restated

Statement of Financial Position

Balance of Retained Earmings as 1,985,680,671

on 1* Shrawan , 2073

(139,871,166}

1,845,800,505

(Reference Mote

5.22)

Balance of Retained Earmings as 2,287.070,651

on 31" Ashadh, 2074

(1,009,719,133)
(Reference Mote (Reference Mote

5.23)

(136,423,507}

(377,558,067)
(As mentoned
above)

763,369,942

5.22)

Citizens Bank International Ltd.

Restatement/ Reclassification of Previous Year Audited Financial Statement
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31" Ashadh, 2074 (July 15, 2017)

Particulars

Audited

Change

Restated

Remarks

Assets

Cash And Cash Equivalent

6,078,365,521

{2,190,895,703)

3,887,468,818

Reclassification to Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Due From Mepal Rastra Bank

2,190,896,703

2,190,896,703

Reclassification from Cash and Cash Equivalent

Placement With Bank And
Financial institutions

1,568,014,418

1,568,014,418

Reclassed from Investment Securities

Derivative Financial Instruments

21,975,955

21,975,955

Reclassed from Other Assets

Other Trading Assets

51,442,831

51,442,831

Reclassed from Investment Securities

Loans And Advances To B/Fls

1625856443

[158,729,467)

1.467,126,576

Due to changes in accounting policy by opting
for canve out in impairment loss provision

Loans And Advances To
Customers

46,483,553, 791

(462,062,355)

465,021,501,436

Reclassification of Staff Loans and Advances
from Other Assets and Due to changes in
accounting policy by opting for carve out in
impairment loss provision

Investment Securities

£,449,820,208

(1,664,214 287)

b, 785,605,921

Reclassed to placement with BFls, trading
aszets and Investment in o associates and
subsidlaries

Current Tax Assets

300,791,522

300,791,522

Investment In Subsidiaries

67,000,000

57,000,000

Reclassed fram lnvestment Securities

Irvestment In Associates

31,751,500

31,751,500

Reclassed from Investment Securites

Investment Property

390,066,062

390,066,062

Reclassed from Other Assets

Property And Equipment

1,684, 760,738

73,785,692

1,758,546,.430

Reclassed from Intangible assets and prior
pericd errar correction

Goodwill And Intangible Assets

80,368,112

{72,301,622)

8,066,489

Reclaszed to Property and Equipment
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Particulars

Change

Remarks

Deferred Tax Assets

(87,873,011)

Due to creation of Deferred Tax Liabilities in
MFRS report against Deferred Tax Asset In NRB
Report, Reference Mote 5.22.1

Other Assets

2,186,452.727

(B55,093,610)

1,331,359,117

Reclassed Non- Banking Assets to Investment
Property, Receivables of MNon- Deliverable
Forward to Derivative Financial Instruments
Assets and Staff Loans and Advances to Loans
and Advances to Customers.

Total Assets

66,977,842,073

(1,096,227,895)

65,881,614,179

Liabilities

Due To Banks And Fimancial
Institutions

2,501, 206,804

2,501,906, 804

Due To Nepal Rastra Bank

33,578,077

Derivative Financial Instruments

Deposits From Customers

51,716,674,652

51,716,674,652

Borrowing

Current Tax Liabilities

Provisions

(173,627,534)

Reclassed provision for bonus and other
expenses to Other Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liabilities

85,182,159

85,192,159

Due to creation of Deferred Tax Liabilities in
MFRS report against Deferred Tax Asset in NRB
Report, Reference Note 5.22.1

Other Liabilities

1,029,301,990

173,627,534

1,202,929,525

Reclassed provision for bonus and other
expenses fram Provisions

Debt Securities |ssued

458,148,814

Subardinated Liabilities

Total Liabilities

55,953,237.871

56,038,430,031

Equity

Share Capital

6,921,689,662

6,921,689,662

Share Premium

532,794,833

532,794,833

Reclassification from Reserves

Retalned Earnings

2,287,070,651

{1,523,700,709)

763,360,942

Due to prior period error correction and
changes in accounting policy, Reference Note
5228523

Reserves

1,815,843,890

[190,514,180)

1,625,329,711

Reclassification ta  Share Premium  and
reclassification of Regulatory Reserve from
Retained Earmings. Reference Note 5.25.1

Total Equity Attributable To
Equity Holders

11,024,604,203 (1,181,420,055)

9,843,184,148

Non-Controlling Interest

Total Equity

11,024,604,203 (1,181,420,055)

Total Liabilities And Equity

66,977,842,073 (1,096,227,895)

At arfiw ghdsm voor
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Particulars

Audited

Change

Restated

Interest Income

4.960,197,979

4,960,197,979

Interest Expenses

(3,169,957, 746)

(3,169,957, 746)

Net Interest Income

1,790,240,233

1,790,240,233

Fees And Commission Income

468,614,552

{39,403,438)

429,711,115

Reclassed to Non Operating Incoma

Fees And Commission Expenses

(37,071,648

3,674,753

{33,396,855)

Reclassed to Other Operating Expenses

Net Fee And Commission
Income

431,542,904

(35,728,645)

395,814,259

Net Interest, Fee And

Commission Income

2,221,783,137

(35,728,645)

2,186,054,492

MNet Trading Income

205,141,830

{68,347 362)

136,794,468

Reclassification of Rewaluation gainfloss
and dividend of equity instruments to other
aperating Income

Other Operating Income

721,735,685

(627,845 ,855)

93,889,840

Reclassification of recovery of loan written
off and other miscellaneous income te Non
operating income

Total Operating Income

3,148,660,662

(731,921,862)

2,416,738,801

Impairment  (Charge)/Reversal
For Loans And Other Losses

(61,516,994)

158,482,211

96,965,217

Due to change in accounting policy. Reference
note 5,23

Net Operating Income.

3,087,143 668

(573,439,651)

2,513,704,017

Operating Expense

Personne| Expenses

{603,845,240)

(579,564,141

Other Operating Expenses

1411,626,291)

102,261,664

(300,364,627)

Dug to loam written off reclassification to
MNon Operating Expenses and reclassification
of miscellanecus expenses from fees and
commission expenses

Depreciation & Amortization

{94,176,350)

1,484,069

{92,692,281)

Due to prior period error correction. Reference
Mote 5.22.2

Operating Profit

1,977,495,787

(445,412,820)

1,532,082,967

Mon Operating Income

735,476,834

735,476,834

Reclassification of recovery of loan written off
and other miscellaneous income from other
operating income and Other non operating
fees reciassed from Fees and Commission
Income

Mon Operating Expense

(105,936,458]

[105,936,458)

Due to loan written off reclassed from Other
Operating Expenses

Profit Before Income Tax

1,977,495,787

184,127,556

2,161,623,344

Income Tax Expense

Current Tax

{265,337,676)

1,195,651

(264,142,025)

Due to prior period error correction (Reference
Mote, 5.22.1)

Deferred Tax

(231,108,602)

(31,454,342}

(262,563,544

Due to prior period error correction. Reference
Note 5.22.1

Profit For The Period

1,481,049,509

153,868,265

1,634,917,774

Other Comprehensive Income

28,266,600

(25,476,749)

2,789,851

Due to prior period efror correction (Reference
Note, 5.22.3)

Total Comprehensive incame

1,509,316,100

128,391,516

1,637,707,625
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5.26. Key Financial Indicators

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year  Fiscal Year  Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2070/71 207172 2072/73 207374 207475

Met Profit / Gross Income Percent 17.81 23.17 27.31 19.36 15.41
. Earnings Per Share (Basic) NPR 23.7 30.54 35.25 2027 1537
. Market Wafue Per Share MPR 539 489 680 403 236
. Price Earnings Ratio Times 22.74 15.8 15:29 19.88 15.36
. Dividend {including bonus) on Share Capital Percent 18,95 21.05 2578 17.00 5263
. Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent 5.495 1.05 1.29 1.00 1.635
. Interest Income / Loans and Advances Percent 11.44 10.19 941 10.55 12.53
E. Staff Expenses / Total Operating Expenses Percent 38.11 42.57 44.19 44,54 62.33
9, Interest Expenses / Total Deposits and Borrowings Percent 537 4.6 4.38 6.32 815
10, Foreign Exchange Gain / Total Income Percent 271 3.17 3.62 3.27 3.32
11. Staff Bonus / Total Staff Expenses Percent 40.56 41.2 52.13 35.50 24.19
12 Met Profit / Loans and Advances Percent 2.42 .75 3.10 243 230
13, Return an Total Assets Percent 1.71 135 2.24 1.80 1.72
14. Total Credit f Deposits Percent 82.87 Bl.6 B5.59 91.89 82.75
15, Total Operating Expenses [ Total Assets Percent 1.49 1.58 1.38 162 1.75
16, Adequacy of Capital Fund on Risk Weighted Assets  Percent 1299 13.27 12.40 16.88 13.84
Care Capital Percent 10.26 10,74 15.37 1276
Supplementary Capital Percent .73 2.53 151 1.08
17. Non-Performing Loans [/ Total Loans |As per NRB Percent 3.4 153 1.38 2.02 1.48
Directive)
18, Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread [As per NRE  Percent 499 4.22 396 319 3.84
Directive)
1%, Book Net Warth Per Share NPR 116 121 121 136 137
20, Mumber of Equity Shares (At Year End) Nos. 21,018,400 25,543,615 30,652,338 69,216,897 80,332,364
21, Mumber of Permanent $taffs Nos, kL] 532 652 684 B4
22, Return on Equity Percent 18.09 19.26 20.36 11.52 11.20
23, Dividend Pay Out Ratio Rabio 0.80 0.68 0.73 0.24 0.34
24, Earnings Yield Percent 4.40 6.313 5.18 5.03 6.51
25. Dividend Yield Percent 3.52 4.30 3.79 422 223
26, Cost to Operating Income Rabio Percent 30.72 36.15 3132 40.44 41.48
27, Total Assets to Shareholder' Fund Times 11.70 11.09 10.38 6.97 7.06

28. shareholders' Fund to Total Liability including Percent 7.38 7.42 7.39 10.55 12.03
Contingent Liability

29, Base Rate Percent 7.30 .06 11.17 11.78
30, CCD Rabtio a3 per NRB Directives Percent 74.95 77.63 78.63 Ti.B7
31. Number of Branches Nos. 42 54 56 &0 78
32, Mumber of ATMs Nos, 35 44 49 57 70
33, Net Profit per staff MNPR 1,248,353 1,353,963 1,657,021 1,581,377 1,462,208
34, Per employee staff cost WPR 414,959 455,940 452,764 642,581 928,979
35, Diluted Earnings Per Share NPR 2455 20.36 15.37

Note: Ratios of FY 2070671, 2071/72, 207273 and 207374 are as per previous GAAP report amd ratiod of FY 2075/76 are as per NFRS
complied financial statements unless otherwise mdicated.

Indicators
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5.27. Shareholders holding 0.5% or more shares

The list of shareholders holding 0.5% or more shares of the Bank are as follows:
PROMOTER DRDlHﬁR"I" HI.IHBEI}D'F PAID UP- % OF
SHARES SHARES  SHARES HELD WALUENPR  SHAREHOLDING

Citizen Investment Trust 2,644,121 086,866 3,630,987 363,098,700 4,52
Urmila Pandey 2,941,059 664,957 3,606,016 360,601,600 4,485
lanak Bista 3,220,023 - 3,220,023 322,002,300 4.008
Bijendra Joshi 1,354,930 32T 413 1,742,343 174,234,300 2,169
Manohar Das Mool 1,090,723 405,245 1,495,968 149,596,800 1.862
Pavitra Kumar Karki 1,016,194 3E2,007 1,398,201 139,820,100 1741
Foni Joshi 1,016,194 378,900 1,395,094 139509400 1.737
Rabindra Man Singh Pradhan 1,016,194 377,581 1,393,755 139,375,500 1.735
Sabitrl Sharma 1,059,127 232,773 1,291,900 129,190,000 1.608
Ramesh Sharma 812,900 302,049 1,115,009 111,500,900 1.388
Jagannath Gyawall 541,730 256,863 798,593 79,859, 300 0,994
Arjun Prasad Sharma 549,243 245,651 794,894 79489400 0.99
Shankar Prasad Sharma 681,570 109,752 791,322 79,132,200 0,985
Sulechan Raj Rajbhandary 541,971 201,370 743,341 74,334,100 0.925
Anin Rajbhandari 496,871 177,308 674,269 67,426,900 0.839
MNarendra Kumar Deo Bhatta 541,970 99,626 41,596 64, 159,600 0.799
Ramita Bhattaral 480,677 130,084 580,771 59,077,100 0.735
Manita Bhattaral 460,677 129,001 589,678 58,967,200 0.734
Pratap Jung Pandey 467,453 103,733 571,186 27,118,600 0711
5 R Hydro And Investment Put, Litd 535,560 29,217 569,177 56,917,700 0,709
Ram Prasad Shrestha 406,208 152,603 558,817 55281700 D.696
Baburam Pokharel 406,480 151,026 557,506 23,750,600 0,694
Rajesh Khadka 406,430 151,026 557,506 55,750,600 D694
Prem Bahadur Shrestha 540,025 12,193 352,218 35,221,800 0.687
Anil Kumar Dhungel 541,842 = 541,542 54,184,200 0.675
sandhya Regmi (Shivaket) 382 497 142,115 524,612 52461200 D.653
Chintamani Bhattaral 379,380 140,957 520,337 52,033,700 0648
MLG Insurance Co. Ltd 514,246 - 514,246 51,424,600 .54
Dhruba Kumar Shrestha 508,100 508,100 50,810,000 0.632
Badri Kumar Shrestha 508,100 502,100 50,810,000 0.632
shrawan Kumar Rana 338,732 411,573 41,157,300 0512
Usha Kiran Shrestha 407,454 407,454 40,745,400 0.507
Pradeep Kumar Shrestha 406,096 406,096 40,609,600 0.506
Chandra Investment Put. Ltd 311,138 402,507 40,250,700 0501

TOTAL 27,510,425 34,025,037 3,402,503,700

i
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